# FAX Option Type 2027

# Operating Instructions Facsimile Reference <Basic Features>



- 1 Getting Started
- 2 Faxing
- 3 Using Internet Fax Functions
- 4) Programming
- 5 Troubleshooting

#### Introduction

This manual describes detailed instructions on the operation and notes about the use of this machine. To get maximum versatility from this machine all operators are requested to read this manual carefully and follow the instructions. Please keep this manual in a handy place near the machine.

#### Notes

Some illustrations in this manual might be slightly different from the machine.

Certain options might not be available in some countries. For details, please contact your local dealer.

Two kinds of size notation are employed in this manual. With this machine refer to the metric version.

#### Important

Contents of this manual are subject to change without prior notice. In no event will the company be liable for direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages as a result of handling or operating the machine.

#### Trademarks

Microsoft<sup>®</sup> and Outlook<sup>®</sup> are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

Adobe<sup>®</sup> and Acrobat<sup>®</sup> are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated.

Other product names used herein are for identification purposes only and might be trademarks of their respective companies. We disclaim any and all rights in those marks.

### NOTICE TO USERS (NEW ZEALAND)

- ① The grant of a Telepermit for any item of terminal equipment indicates only that Telecom has accepted that the item complies with minimum conditions for connection to its network. It indicates no endorsement of the product by Telecom, nor does it provide any sort of warranty. Above all, it provides no assurance that any item will work correctly in all respects with another item of Telepermitted equipment of a different make or model, nor does it imply that any product is compatible with all of Telecom's network services.
- ② This equipment is not capable, under all operating conditions, of correct operation at the higher speeds for which it is designed. Telecom will accept no responsibility should difficulties arise in such circumstances.
- ③ This equipment shall not be set up to make automatic calls to the Telecom "111" Emergency Service.
- ④ If a charge for local calls is unacceptable, the "Dial" button should NOT be used for local calls. Only the 7-digits of the local number should be dialled from your telephone. DO NOT dial the area code degit or the "0" prefix.
- (5) This equipment may not provide for the effective hand-over of a call to another device connected to the same line.
- ③ This device may be subject to ringing or bell tinkle when calls are made from another device on the same line. If this occurs, the problem <u>should not</u> be referred to the Telecom Faults Service.
- ⑦ This equipment shoule not be used under any circumstances, which may constitute a nuisance to other Telecom custmers. For example, repeated attempts to make unsolicited sales offers to the same number or group of numbers, such as when a block of numbers terminate on the same PABX.
- ③ The call log incorporated in this equipment does not record all answered calls. The call log, therefore may not agree with the Telecom account which may include calls not shown on the log.
- Not all telephones will respond to incoming ringing when connected to the extension socket.

# Manuals for This Machine

The following manuals describe the operational procedures of this machine. For particular functions, see the relevant parts of the manual.

### 🖉 Note

- □ Manuals provided are specific to machine type.
- □ Adobe Acrobat Reader is necessary to view the manuals as a PDF file.
- □ Two CD-ROMs are provided:
  - CD-ROM 1"Operating Instructions for Printer/Scanner"
  - CD-ROM 2"Scanner Driver & Document Management Utilities"

### General Settings Guide

Provides an overview of the machine and describes System Settings (paper tray, Key Operator Tools, etc.), Document Server functions, and troubleshooting.

Refer to this manual for Address Book procedure such as registering fax numbers, e-mail addresses, and user codes.

### Network Guide (PDF file - CD-ROM1)

Describes procedures for configuring the machine and computers in a network environment.

### Copy Reference

Describes operations, functions, and troubleshooting for the machine's copier function.

### Facsimile Reference <Basic Features>(this manual)

Describes operations, functions, and troubleshooting for the machine's facsimile function.

### Facsimile Reference<Advanced Features>

Describes advanced functions and settings for key operators.

### Printer Reference 1

Describes system settings and operations for the machine's printer function.

### Printer Reference 2 (PDF file - CD-ROM1)

Describes operations, functions, and troubleshooting for the machine's printer function.

### Scanner Reference (PDF file - CD-ROM1)

Describes operations, functions, and troubleshooting for the machine's scanner function.

### Manuals for DeskTopBinder V2 Lite

DeskTopBinder V2 Lite is a utility included on the CD-ROM labeled "Scanner Driver & Document Management Utilities".

- DeskTopBinder V2 Lite Setup Guide (PDF file CD-ROM2) Describes installation of, and the operating environment for DeskTop-Binder V2 Lite in detail. This guide can be displayed from the **[Setup]** dialog box when DeskTopBinder V2 Lite is installed.
- DeskTopBinder V2 Lite Introduction Guide (PDF file CD-ROM2) Describes operations of DeskTopBinder V2 Lite and provides an overview of its functions. This guide is added to the **[Start]** menu when DeskTop-Binder V2 Lite is installed.
- Auto Document Link Guide (PDF file CD-ROM2) Describes operations and functions of Auto Document Link installed with DeskTopBinder V2 Lite. This guide is added to the **[Start]** menu when DeskTopBinder V2 Lite is installed.

### Manuals for ScanRouter V2 Lite

ScanRouter V2 Lite is a utility included on the CD-ROM labeled "Scanner Driver & Document Management Utilities".

- ScanRouter V2 Lite Setup Guide (PDF file CD-ROM2) Describes installation of, settings, and the operating environment for Scan-Router V2 Lite in detail. This guide can be displayed from the **[Setup]** dialog box when ScanRouter V2 Lite is installed.
- ScanRouter V2 Lite Management Guide (PDF file CD-ROM2) Describes delivery server management and operations, and provides an overview of ScanRouter V2 Lite functions. This guide is added to the **[Start]** menu when ScanRouter V2 Lite is installed.

### Other manuals

- PS3 Supplement (PDF file CD-ROM1)
- Unix Supplement (Available from an authorized dealer, or as a PDF file on our Web site.)

# 🖉 Note

□ The following software products are referred to using a general names:

- DeskTopBinder V2 Lite and DesktopBinder V2 Professional  $\rightarrow$  DesktopBinder V2 Lite/Professional
- ScanRouter V2 Lite and ScanRouter V2 Professional (optional)  $\rightarrow$  ScanRouter V2 Lite/Professional
- SmartNetMonitor for Admin and SmartNetMonitor for Client → Smart-NetMonitor for Admin/Client

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE	i
Manuals for This Machine	ii
How to Read This Manual	1
Symbols	1
-,	

# 1. Getting Started

.3
.5
.5
.7
.8
.9
10

# 2. Faxing

	4.4
Iransmission wodes	11
Switching between Memory Transmission and Immediate Transmission	12
Placing Originals	13
Placing a Single Original on the Exposure Glass	14
Bound original page order	15
Placing Originals in the Optional Auto Document Feeder (ADF)	15
Originals unsuitable for the optional Auto Document Feeder	16
Setting a Scan Area	16
Original sizes difficult to detect	19
Memory Transmission	20
Canceling a Memory Transmission	24
Before the Original Is Scanned	24
While the Original Is Being Scanned	24
While the Original Is Being Transmitted	24
Before the Transmission Is Started	25
Immediate Transmission	27
Canceling an Immediate Transmission	29
Before You Have Pressed the [Start] Key	29
After You Have Pressed the [Start] Key	29
Scan Settings	
Besolution	30
Original Type	
Image Density (Contrast)	
Mixing Scan Settings for a Multiple Page Original	
When placing originals on the exposure glass	34
When placing originals in the optional Auto Document Feeder	34
Specifying a Destination	35
Entering a Fax Number	
Pause	
Tone	
Entering an E-mail Address	
Using Destination Lists	37

Searching for a Destination	40
Search by Destination Name	40
Search by Fax Number	41
Search by E-mail Address	42
Specifying a Registration Number	43
Reception	45
Switching the Reception Mode	45
Receiving a Fax in Manual Reception Mode	46

# 3. Using Internet Fax Functions

Internet Fax Functions	
Internet Fax Precautions	48
Functions Not Supported by E-mail Transmission	48
Functions Not Supported by E-mail Reception	49
Sending Internet Fax Documents	
Confirming Reception	
Canceling a Transmission of an Internet Fax	
Before the Original Is Scanned	
While the Original Is Being Scanned In	57
After the Original Has Been Scanned In	57
Receiving Internet Fax Documents	
Auto E-mail Reception	59
Manual E-mail Reception	
Received Images	60

# 4. Programming

Initial Settings and Adjustments	63
Programming	64
Editing	66
Deleting	67
Programming Fax Number and E-mail Addresses	69

# 5. Troubleshooting

Adjusting the Volume	71
When the [Facsimile] Key Is Lit in Red	72
When Toner Runs Out	73
Error Messages and Their Meanings	74
Solving Problems	
When Things Don't Go as Expected	80
INDEX	

# How to Read This Manual

# Symbols

In this manual, the following symbols are used:

### A WARNING:

This symbol indicates a potentially hazardous situation that might result in death or serious injury when you misuse the machine without following the instructions under this symbol. Be sure to read the instructions, all of which are included in "Safety Information", *General Settings Guide*.

### A CAUTION:

This symbol indicates a potentially hazardous situation that might result in minor or moderate injury or property damage that does not involve personal injury when you misuse the machine without following the instructions under this symbol. Be sure to read the instructions, all of which are included in "Safety Information", *General Settings Guide*.

\* The statements above are notes for your safety.

### ∰Important

If this instruction is not followed, paper might be misfed, originals might be damaged, or data might be lost. Be sure to read this.

### Preparation

This symbol indicates information or preparations required prior to operating.

# 🖉 Note

This symbol indicates precautions for operation, or actions to take after abnormal operation.

### Limitation

This symbol indicates numerical limits, functions that cannot be used together, or conditions under which a particular function cannot be used.

# PReference

1

This symbol indicates a reference.

### [

Keys that appear on the machine's display panel.

### []

Keys and buttons that appear on the computer's display.

# [ ]

Keys built into the machine's control panel.

# 1. Getting Started

# **Control Panel**

The actual machine control panel may differ from this illustration depending on installed optional units. This illustration has all options installed.



### 1. Indicators

Shows errors and machine status.

: Data In indicator

1: Service Call indicator

₿**小**: Misfeed indicator

- Open Cover indicator

: Add Staple indicator

: Add Toner indicator

🛓: Paper run-out indicator

See "Control Panel", General Settings Guide.

### 2. [User Tools/Counter] key

User Tools:

Press to enter User Tools mode. These tools allow you to customize default settings. See p.137 "Facsimile Features", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### Counter:

Displays and prints the total number of copied or printed pages.

# 3. Display Panel

This guides you through tasks and displays the machine status. Messages appear here.

### 4. [Check Modes] key

Press before pressing the **[Start]** key to check the settings selected for the fax about to be sent. See p.23 "Checking the transmission settings".

### 5. [Program] key

Enables you to program frequently used settings and recall previously programmed settings. See p.125 "Programs", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

# 6. [Clear Modes] key

Press to cancel the current settings.

### 7. Main Power indicator

This indicator lights when the main power switch is turned on.

### 8. On indicator

This indicator lights when the operation switch is turned on.

### ∰Important

Do not turn off the main power switch while the **On** indicator stays lighted or is blinking. Neglecting this may damage the hard disk.

### 🖉 Note

□ If the main power switch is on even when the **On** indicator is off, the machine will receive a fax message.

#### 9. Operation switch

Press to turn the power on (the **On** indicator lights). To turn the power off, press this switch again (the **On** indicator goes off). See p.189 "Power Failure Report", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 🖉 Note

□ The Operation switch does not function when the **[User Tools/Counter/Inquiry]** display is shown.

#### 10. Communicating indicator

Lights during transmission or reception.

### 11. Receive File indicator

Lights when a message other than a Confidential Reception or Memory Lock file is received. See p.84 "Substitute Reception", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

When Reception File Setting is set to Store, also lights when a message is received. See p.185 "Storing or Printing Received Documents", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 12. Confidential file indicator

Lights when a message is received into memory with Confidential Reception or Personal Box. See p.41 "Printing Personal Box Messages", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

Blinks when a Memory Lock file is received into memory. See p.38 "Printing a File Received with Memory Lock", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 13. [Facsimile] key

Press to switch to facsimile mode.

- Lights up in yellow Facsimile mode has been selected.
- Lights up in green Printing while in facsimile mode.
- Lights up in red Lights up whenever a facsimile error occurs. Press the **[Facsimile]** key to display the error message and take appropriate action. See p.72 "When the **[Facsimile]** Key Is Lit in Red".

### 14. [Start Manual RX] key

Press when Manual Reception is set. See p.46 "Receiving a Fax in Manual Reception Mode".

### 15. [On Hook Dial] key

Press when you want to dial while hearing tone from the internal speaker. See p.56 "On Hook Dial", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 16. [Tone] key

Press to send tonal signals down a pulse dialing line. See p.36 "Tone".

### 17. [Pause/Redial] key

Pause:

Inserts a pause when you are dialing or storing a fax number. A pause cannot be inserted as the first digit. See p.35 "Pause".

#### Redial:

Press to redial one of the last ten numbers. See p.47 "Redial", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 18. Number keys

Use to dial fax numbers, or enter the number of copies.

### 19. [#] key (Enter key)

Programs entered contents or settings.

# 20. [Clear/Stop] key

Clear:

Cancels entered numbers or characters. Stop:

Interrupts the current operation (transmission, scanning, copying, or printing).

### 21. [Start] key

Press to start faxing, or printing reports, or lists.

# **Reading the Display**

The display shows you the machine status, messages, and guides you through operations.

### 🖉 Note

□ This machine automatically returns to standby mode if you do not use the machine for a certain period of time. You can select the period using the Fax Reset Timer. See "Timer Settings", *General Settings Guide*.

### Reading the display panel and using keys

Display contents will differ depending on installed optional units.

### Initial Display



**1.** Allows you to select scanning conditions and sizes.

2. Displays the date and time, the name and facsimile number of a destination when transmitting, and the size of the original.

3. Press to add a destination by entering a fax number or e-mail address.

**4.** Displays messages and the machine status.

5. Displays the entered number of a destination. When adding destinations using the number keys, press [Add].

**6.** Press to display various information about transmission.

7. Switches transmission mode between Memory Transmission and Immediate Transmission.

4

8. Displays Quick Operation Keys set for often used functions. [TX File Status] and [RX File Status] are preset.

9. Displays various functions for transmitting.

**10.** Displays the destination lists of programmed destinations.

Initial Display (When Internet Fax Settings is ON)

						15	5 OCT 20	03 20:11
Standard	() Ready				Informa	tion	Immed.	Memory
Resolution	Set original and specify des	tination.				100%	L TX	<u> </u>
Text	<b>@ @</b> \@3. 0123	3456789	)_	P	rogDest 1			
Original Type	Add Registration No	). Manual li	इन्द्र 🛛 Adv. F	eatures			TX Fil	e Status
(		4 4						3
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD E	F GH I	JK LMN I	DPQ RST	UVW XYZ	<u></u>	RX Fil	e Status
(]Lighter Darker	C000013 C000023 ABC COMP BERLIN O ANY FFICE	LONDON 0 FFICE	LOOOO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	COODOSI TORONTO OFFICE	1000061 XYZ CO.L TD	1/2	Transmis	sion Mode
		l:				*	Sub T	X Mode
Auto Detect			SAN EDAN	SVDNEV 0	1 A EACTO			
Scan Area	FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE	RY	V	Stor	re File

ZLBX050E

#### 1. Switches the destination between fax number and e-mail address.

### 🖉 Note

- To use the Internet Fax functions, the optional printer/scanner unit is required.
- □ You also need to set Internet Fax Settings to ON in Fax Features. See p.145 "E-mail Settings", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

#### **Reading the Destination List**

When using the facsimile function, only fax or Internet Fax destinations programmed in the Address Book appears.

#### Destination List

1-[	Freq. A	3 CD E	F GH	IJK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ 📿	2
	COODODIS ABC COMP	<u>0000023</u> BERLIN O	LONDON O	LOOOO41 NEW YORK	1000053 TORONTO	1/2 XYZ CO.L	2
	ANY	FFICE	FFICE				
	ALL BRAN CHES	X STORE	PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	MAIN OF TICE	
	4		• <u>······</u>	<i>a</i>		3	
							ZLBX060E

**1.** Title word keys appear. Allows you to switch from one page (display) to another on the destination list.

2. Allows you to search for a destination by destination name, fax number, e-mail address, or registration number. **3.** Appears on Quick Dial keys programmed as a transfer station.

4. Appears on Quick Dial keys programmed with a group of destinations.

### Standby Display

While the machine is in standby mode (immediately after the **[Facsimile]** key is pressed or after the **[Clear Modes]** key is pressed), the following display appears.

### Memory Transmission (initial display)

	18	5 OCT 2003 14:54
Standard	O Ready Information	Immed. Memory
Resolution	Set original and specify destination. 100%	
Text	<b>a</b> / <b>e</b> / <u>U</u>	
Original Type	Registration No. Internal light Adv. Fedure:	TX File Status
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LMN OPO RST UVW XYZ 🕰	RX File Status
(1 inter Darker)	C000013         C000023         C000033         C000043         C000053         C000063           ABC         COMP         BERLIN 0         LONDON 0         NEW YORK         TORONTO         YYZ CO.L         1/2	Transmission Mode
Auto Detect	[0000073] [000083] [000093] [000103] [000113] [000123	Sub TX Mode
Scan Area	X STORE PARIS OF DETROIT SAN FRAN SYDNEY O LA FACTO	Store File

### Immediate Transmission

		18	5 OCT 2003 14:55
Standard	() Ready	Information	Immed. Memory
Resolution	Set original and specify destination.	100%	TX TX
Text	<b>**</b>	Total: O	
Original Type	Registration No.   Manual Input   Adv. Focus	<u>.</u>	TX File Status
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LHN OPQ	RST UVW XYZ 🔍	RX File Status
(Lighter Darker)	2000013 2000023 2000033 2000043 2000 ABC COMP BERLIN 0 LONDON 0 NEW YORK TORO ANY FEICE FEICE OFFICE OFFICE	053 000063 DNTO XYZ CO.L 1/2 ICE TD	Transmission Mode
Auto Detect	10000073 1000083 1000093 10000103 10000		Sub TX Mode
Scan Area	X STORE PARIS OF DETROIT SAN FRAN SYD FICE FACTORY CISCO FFIC	NEY O LA FACTO CE RY	Store File

# 🖉 Note

- □ To return to standby mode, do one of the following:
  - If you have placed the original in the optional Auto Document Feeder (ADF) and have not pressed the **[Start]** key, remove the original.
  - If you have not placed an original, press the [Clear Modes] key.
  - If you are in User Tools mode, press the [User Tools/Counter] key.

### **Communication Display**

While communicating, the machine status is displayed.

### Memory Transmission (fax transmission)

		A4->A4	P.002		15 OCT 2003 14:54
Standard	O Ready		Change/Stop TX File	Information	Immed. Memory
Resolution	Set original and specify dest	ination.		99%	6 TX TX
Text	<b>B ( 1 ( ( 1 ( ( 1 ( ( 1 ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (</b>		To	tal:	
Original Type	Registration No	. Hennal light	Adv. Factures		TX File Status
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF	CH IJK	LHN OPQ RST	UVW XYZ 🕰	RX File Status
(Lighter Darker)	ABC COMP BERLIN 0	C000033 C000 LONDON 0 NEI EFICE 0E	041 000051 V YORK TORONTO	XYZ CO.L TD	Transmission Mode
Auto Detect	£000073 £000083	1000 1000	0101 0000111	L000123	Sub TX Mode
Scan Area	X STORE PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT SAN FACTORY CIS	FRAN SYDNEY O SCO FFICE	RY RACTO	Store File

# 🖉 Note

□ While e-mail is being sent, the "Sending E-mail...:" message appears.

### Reception

		Receiving	15	OCT 2003 14:54
Standard	O Ready	Informat	ion	Immed. Memory
Resolution	Set original and specify destination.	-	99%	
Text	<b>a (</b> <u>0</u> <u>3</u> _	Total: O		
Original Type	Registration No.   Advanaling	at Adv. Foolune		TX File Status
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJ	K LIIN OPQ RST UVW XYZ	<u>a</u>	RX File Status
(] inhter   Darker	C000013 C000023 C000033 ABC COMP BERLIN 0 LONDON 0	C000043 C000053 C000063 NEW YORK TORONTO XYZ CO.L	1/2	Transmission Mode
Auto Detect	1000073 1000083 1000093	C000103 C000113 C000123	Lå [	Sub TX Mode
Scan Area	X STORE PARIS OF DETROIT FICE FACTORY	SAN FRAN SYDNEY O LA FACTO CISCO FFICE RY	T	Store File

### 🖉 Note

□ Even when the machine is being used as a copier, printer, or scanner, the sender name or number will appear for received faxes.

### Immediate Transmission

		A4->A4	P.003	1	5 OCT 2003 11:12
Standard	Trans	mitting	Stop Transmission	Memory:	Immed. Hernory
Resolution				99%	
Text	Original:	V <sup>13</sup> 0123456789		Dest.	
Original Type	د			Isets	
Auto Image Density					Transmission Mode
()Lighter Darker					
Auto Detect					Sub TX Mode
St #i Arki					Socilie

### **User Code Entry Display**

When the following message appears on the display, User Code Management is
active. Enter a user code to deactivate User Code Management.



The machine can be set up so that no one can use it without entering a user code. This prevents unauthorized people from sending fax messages and helps track the activity of each user or department.

### 🖉 Note

- □ You can specify a user code with "System Settings". See "Registering a New User Code", *General Settings Guide*.
- Even when User Code Management is on, you can still receive and print fax messages as normal.

### **1** Enter a user code of up to eight digits using the number keys.

# 2 Press [**@**].

# 🔗 Note

□ If an unprogrammed user code is entered, the display returns to that of step **①**.

# 2. Faxing

# **Transmission Modes**

There are two types of transmission:

- Memory Transmission
- Immediate Transmission

### Memory Transmission

Transmission starts automatically after the original has been stored in memory. It is a convenient method for when you are in a hurry and want to take the document away with you. You can also send the same original to several destinations (broadcasting).



### Immediate Transmission

Immediately dials the destination number, and while reading the original, sends it. It is very convenient when you want to send an original quickly or when you want to check the destination you are sending to. When using this type of transmission, the original is not stored in memory. You can only specify one address.



### Important

□ If power outage lasts about an hour, or the machine is disconnected from the power outlet for about an hour, documents stored in the fax machine's memory are deleted. If any document is deleted, the Power Failure Report is automatically printed out when the main power switch is turned on. Use this report to check which documents were deleted. Simply turning off the power by pressing the Operation switch does not delete stored documents. See p.189 "Power Failure Report", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.



□ You can use Parallel Memory Transmission that dials while the original is being scanned. See p.77 "Parallel Memory Transmission", *Facsimile Refer*ence <Advanced Features>.

# Switching between Memory Transmission and Immediate Transmission

Check the display to see which mode is currently active. You can change transmission mode by pressing [Immed. TX] or [Memory TX].

				R	001	2003 11:12
			Informa	tion	Immed	. Memory
recify destination.				100%	TX	TX
012345678	0	P	rogDest			
012545010	<u> </u>		1			
stration No. 🛛 Assess	liquit 🛛 Adv. Fe	atures 🛛	,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,, ,,		TX	File Status
					DV	Cila Otatua
W EF UH	IJK LIIN U	PULIKSI	UYW XTZ	5	L BA	File Status
0241 [000251 C COMP BERLIN (	CO00263	TORONTO	XYZ COMP		Transr	nission Mode
T FFICE	UFFICE	UFFICE	ANT		Cue	TV Mode
0303 2000313	1000321	0000331	£000341		Jul	I TA Would
CE FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE	RY RY		S	tore File

# 🖉 Note

- □ You can select the transmission mode that is operative when the machine is turned on with [Memory/Immed. Transmission Switch] under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- □ You can have the machine return to default mode after each transmission using [Scan End Reset] under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

# **Placing Originals**

You can place the originals either in the optional ADF or on the exposure glass. Some types of originals are unsuitable for the ADF, so they must be placed on the exposure glass.

Which way you place the original depends on its size and whether you are using the ADF or the exposure glass. See p.19 "Original sizes difficult to detect".

How to place A4, B4 JIS (Japanese Industrial Standard), A3, 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"×11", 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"×14", and 11"×17" size originals



# 🖉 Note

- □ When you place originals as shown in the above illustration, the fax header will be printed on received faxes at the destination as follows:
  - \*1 On the top of the fax
  - \*2 On the left side of the fax

### How to place A5 and B5 JIS size originals



# Limitation

If you place A5 size documents on the exposure glass, they will not be detected. A5 size documents placed in the ADF are sent. See p.19 "Original sizes difficult to detect".

### 🖉 Note

- When you place originals as shown in the above illustration, the fax header will be printed on the received faxes at the destination as follows:
  - \*1 On the top of the fax
  - \*2 On the left side of the fax
- □ When sending a fax, the image output at the other end depends on the size and orientation of paper used in the receiver's terminal. If the receiver does not use paper of the same size and orientation as that of the original, the fax image may be reduced in size, trimmed at both edges, or divided into two or more sheets. When sending an important original, we recommend you ask the receiver about the size and orientation of the paper used in their terminal.

- When sending an original of irregular (i.e. custom) size or part of a large original, you can specify the scan area precisely. See p.16 "Setting a Scan Area".
- Custom size documents are scanned as regular size documents, so the receiver may find extra blank margins or edges of images missing. If you specify a scan area, only that area will be scanned regardless of actual document size.
- Make sure that all ink, correcting fluid etc., has completely dried before placing your original. If it is still wet, the exposure glass will be marked and those marks will appear on the received image.
- □ If you place an A4 size original in the portrait orientation, the machine rotates the image by 90 degrees before sending. See p.79 "Transmission with Image Rotation", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- □ You can send the first pages from the exposure glass then the remaining pages from the ADF. After you have removed the last page from the exposure glass, insert the remaining pages in the ADF, and then press the **[Start]** key.
- When using the Internet Fax function, documents transmitted are sent at A4 width. Documents larger than A4 are reduced to A4 width.

### PReference

For how to place two-sided documents, see p.62 "Two-Sided Transmission (Double-Sided Transmission)", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

For acceptable types of originals, see p.199 "Acceptable Types of Originals", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

# Placing a Single Original on the Exposure Glass

Place originals that cannot be placed in the optional ADF, such as a book, on the exposure glass one page at a time.

# **1** Lift the exposure glass cover or the ADF by at least 30 degrees.

### 🖉 Note

- □ If you do not lift the ADF by at least 30 degrees, the original size will not be detected.
- **2** Place the original face down and align its upper left corner with the reference mark at the upper left corner of the exposure glass.



- 1. Positioning mark
- 2. Scale
- **3** Lower the ADF.

### 🖉 Note

When setting a bound original, the received image may contain some black areas. To reduce this effect, hold down the original to prevent the bound part from rising.

### Bound original page order

When setting bound originals (books, magazines, etc.), you can select to have either the left page or right page sent first. See p.61 "Book Fax", Fac-simile Reference <Advanced Features>.

### 🖉 Note

□ You can select whether the left page or right page is sent first. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*> (switch 06, bit 6).

# Placing Originals in the Optional Auto Document Feeder (ADF)

Use the ADF to scan in a stack of originals in one operation. The ADF can handle both one-sided and two-sided originals.

### Limitation

- Place all the originals to be sent in a single stack.
- You cannot place originals in the ADF one page at a time or in sheaves.

### 🖉 Note

- □ The maximum document length is 1200 mm (47").
- □ If you send documents longer than 420 mm (17"), specify the area to be scanned. If you send such documents frequently, select Long Document mode with the User Parameters. If a jam occurs, the document might be damaged because scanning will not stop. See p.16 "Setting a Scan Area". See p.158 "User Parameters", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features> (switch 14, bit 1).

- Documents longer than 800 mm (32") must be sent by memory transmission (immediate transmission is not possible).
- If your original is bent or folded, flatten it before you place it.
- When sending thin originals, place them on the exposure glass.
- □ If an original jammed, press the **[Clear/Stop]** key, and then slowly remove the original.
- □ You can check information about the sizes and number of originals that can be placed in the ADF. See p.199 "Acceptable Types of Originals", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- Adjust the document guide to match the size of the originals.
- 2 Align the edges of the originals and stack them in the ADF face up.



- 1. Limit mark
- 2. Document guide

#### Originals unsuitable for the optional Auto Document Feeder

Do not place the following types of originals in the ADF because they may be damaged. Place them on the exposure glass instead.

- Originals in unacceptable sizes (See p.199 "Acceptable Types of Originals", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features> .)
- Originals containing staples or clips
- Perforated or torn originals
- Curled, folded, or creased originals
- · Pasted originals
- Originals with any kind of coating, such as thermosensitive paper, art paper, aluminum foil, carbon paper, or conductive paper
- Originals with index tabs, tags, or other projecting parts
- Sticky originals, such as translucent paper
- Thin and soft originals
- Originals of inappropriate weight (See p.199 "Acceptable Types of Originals", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features> .)
- Originals in bound form, such as books
- Transparent originals, such as OHP transparencies or translucent paper

# Setting a Scan Area

Normally, a placed document is scanned according to the automatically detected size. If a scan area is specified, the document is scanned accordingly. Thus, documents can be sent without extra space or blank margins.

#### Auto Detect

The placed document is scanned according to the automatically detected size.

### 🖉 Note

□ If the machine cannot detect the original size, a confirmation message appears. Replace the original.

### Regular

The placed document is scanned according to specified size regard-less of actual size.

The sizes that can be specified are A4  $\Box$   $\Box$ , B4 JIS $\Box$ , A3 $\Box$ , 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"×11"  $\Box$   $\Box$ , 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"×14" $\Box$ , and 11"×17" $\Box$ .

### Area

Enter the area to be scanned. Only the area in the specified size is scanned regardless of the actual size of a placed document. See p.152 "Programming, Changing and Deleting a Scan Size", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

### 🖉 Note

To cancel the selected scan area, select [Auto Detect]. See p.18 "Specifying Auto Detect". **1** Place the originals, and then select any scan settings you require.

### 🖉 Note

- When placing different size originals into the ADF, adjust the document guide to the largest original.
- Small-size originals may be sent at a slight slant since they do not match the document guide.

# 2 Press [Scan Area].

Standard	() Rea	dy			
Resolution	Set original a	nd specify des	tination.		
Text	<b>8/</b>	<u>63</u>			
Original Type	Ĩ	Registration No	). Estal l	işidi. Adir. F	sdures
Auto Image Density	Freq. A	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ F
(]Lighter   Darker∳	LOODOIL ABC COMP ANY	COODO23 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	LOOOO4J NEW YORK OFFICE	COODOS TORON OFFIC
Auto Detect Scan Area	X STORE	LOODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COODIDI SAN FRAN CISCO	E00011 SYDNE FFICE

### **3** Select the scan area.

Specifying standard sizes

### Press [Regular].

Scan Area	O Ready Set original and specify destination.					
Auto Detect		<b>63</b> Benistration No	n <b>k</b> anali	wie art: S	alase	
Regular	Eng. A		E OU T			
Aire 1	Field. M					
Alex C	ABC COMP ANY	BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON	
ОК	2000073 X STORE	COODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COODIDI SAN FRAN CISCO	COOD11 SYDNE FFICE	

**2** Press the size of the originals to be sent, and then press [OK].



# 🖉 Note

 □ 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"×11" indicates LT. 8<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub>"× 14" indicates LG. 11"×17" indicates DLT.

• Press [OK].

Scan Area	O Ready Set original and specify destination.						
Addo Detect	<b>8/#</b> \.						
Regular	Registration N	0. Hongal i F CH I	ngad 🛛 Adie, P TUK 🗍 LMN	oriality OPO <b>I</b> F			
Area 1 Area 0	ABC COMP BERLIN O	LONDON 0	LOODO41 NEW YORK	TORON			
	10000073 10000083 X STORE PARIS OF	COOCO93 DETROIT	COOD 102 SAN FRAN	COOD11 SYDNE			

The selected size is shown above the highlighted **[Scan Area]**.

Specifying programmed sizes

### Press [Area 1] or [Area 2].

Scan Area	O Rea Set original a	<b>dy</b> nd specify des	tination.		
Auto Detect	<b>8</b> / <b>(</b> ) \	63			
Regular		Registration No	). Establi	pot Ale. F	siles
Area 1	Freq. At		н цн ц		
Area 2	48C COMP	0000023 BERLIN 0	1000033	LOODO41	100005 TORON
	ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFIC
	1000071	£000083	£000003	2000103	200011
ОК	X STORE	PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNE

### Press [OK].

Scan Area	O Rea	dv					
	Set original at	nd snecity des	tination				
Auto Detect							
* Auto Dataat							
+ Auto Detect							
↔ 297m		Registration No	Esmali	ant Aria (	estone		
Regular	-	legion de lon rue			Section 2		
	Fren AF	CD F	E GH 1	JK IMN	OPO II		
Area 1							
dama 0	1000013	000021	000033	2000043	000005		
nied Z	ABC COMP	BERLIN U	LUNDON U	NEW YURK	TURU		
	ANY	FFICE	FFICE	UFFICE	UFFI		
	1000073	1000081	1000093	1000103	1000011		
	X STORE	PARIS OF	DETROIT	SAN FRAN	SYDNE		
OK		FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE		

"Area 1" or "Area 2" is shown above the highlighted **[Scan Area]**.

### Specifying Auto Detect

# • Make sure that [Auto Detect] is selected.

Scan Area	O Rea Set original ar	<b>dy</b> nd specify des	tination.		
Auto Detect		<b>63</b> Registration No	). Estal	işed 🛛 Ade. F	sine:
Area 1 Area 2	Freq. AE	CD E	F GH I LONDON O	JK LMN COOD043 NEW YORK	OPQ F COOLOS TORON OFFE TO
ОК	2000073 X STORE	LOODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COODIDI SAN FRAN CISCO	COOD11 SYDNE FFICE

### 🖉 Note

□ If it is not, press [Auto Detect].

Press [OK].

Scan Area Auto Detect	O Ready Set original and specify destination.					
Popular		63 Registration No	D. Monual I	nput 📔 Adiv. F	as unes	
Area 1	Freq. At	JK LMN	OPQ			
Area 2	ABC COMP ANY	E000023 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	COOCOAS NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON OFFIC	
ОК	X STORE	COODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COODID3 SAN FRAN CISCO	ECOCOLI SYDNE FFICE	

"Auto Detect" is shown above **[Scan Area]**.

Specify a destination and press the [Start] key.

### Original sizes difficult to detect

The machine finds it difficult to detect the size of the following kinds of originals. If this happens, the receiving machine may not select print paper of the correct size.

- Documents placed on the exposure glass of sizes other than those listed in the table below
- Originals with index tabs, tags, or protruding parts
- Transparent originals, such as OHP transparencies or translucent paper
- Dark originals with dense text or drawings
- Originals which partially contain solid printing
- Originals which have solid printing around their edges
- Originals with glossy surfaces
- Bound originals of more than 10 mm (0.3") in thickness, such as books.

The following paper sizes are automatically detected in facsimile mode.

#### Metric Version

Paper size where original is placed	A3D	8 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> "×13" (F4)	B4 JIS₽	A4 <b>D</b> D	B5 JIS ₽₽	A5 <b>DD</b>
Exposure glass	0	0	0	0	0	×
ADF	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Inch Version

Paper size where original is placed	11"×17" <b>D</b>	8 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> "×14"	8 <sup>1</sup> /2"×11"	5 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> "×8 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> "
Exposure glass	0	0	0	×
ADF	0	0	0	0

#### O - Auto detect

 $\times$  - Unable to auto detect

# **Memory Transmission**

In Memory Transmission mode, after you press the **[Start]** key, the machine does not dial the destination until all pages of your fax message have been scanned into memory (in contrast to Immediate Transmission, where the number is dialed first and pages are scanned and sent one by one).

Memory Transmission is useful because:

- You can take your original away from the machine without having to wait too long.
- While your message is being sent, other people can use the machine.
- You can send the same message to more than one place in a single operation (broadcasting).

Memory transmission mode has normal fax and Internet Fax functions.

### ₿Important

- □ If there is a power failure (the main power switch is off) or the machine is unplugged out for more than one hour, all the documents stored in memory are deleted. As soon as the main power switch is turned on, the Power Failure Report is printed to help you identify deleted files. If you turn only the operation switch off, documents are not deleted. See p.189 "Power Failure Report", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- We recommend you call the receiver and confirm with them when sending important messages.

### Limitation

□ If memory is full (0% appears on the display), Memory Transmission is disabled. Use Immediate Transmission instead.

### 🖉 Note

- Maximum number of destinations per Memory Transmission: 500.
- Combined total number of destinations of standby messages stored in memory: 500 (2,000 with the optional fax function upgrade unit).
- □ After the total number of programmed destination numbers exceeds 500 (2,000 with the optional fax function upgrade unit), you can perform only Immediate Transmission.
- The number of documents you can store is 400. You can store 800 documents with the optional fax function upgrade unit.
- The number of pages you can store in memory depends on the original images and the scan settings. You can store up to 320 standard pages (ITU-T #4 chart, Resolution: Standard, Original Type: Text). You can store up to 2,240 standard pages, with the optional expansion memory installed.
- □ You can have the machine set to Memory Transmission mode or Immediate Transmission mode right after the power is turned on or the **[Clear Modes]** key is pressed. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Ad*vanced Features>.

- □ You can have the machine return to the default transmission mode (Memory Transmission) or Immediate Transmission) after every transmission. You can change this so that the desired setting is maintained. See p.142 "General Settings / Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.
- □ When E-mail TX Results is programmed in a Quick Operation key, you can select whether transmission result report e-mail is sent to specified e-mail addresses. The destination for notification is selected from Internet Fax destinations in the destination list. See p.81 "Transmission Result Report (Memory Transmission)", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>* and p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.
- Allows you to specify fax number and e-mail address simultaneously.

### PReference

p.50 "Sending Internet Fax Documents"

**1** Make sure that Memory TX is selected.



# 🖉 Note

□ If it is not, press [Memory TX].

# **2** Place the original.

### 🖉 Note

- You can send the first few pages from the exposure glass then the remaining pages from the ADF. After you remove the last page from the exposure glass, you have 60 seconds to insert the remaining pages in the ADF.
- Note that you cannot place pages on the exposure glass after you have started using the ADF.
- □ The original can be placed either in the ADF or on the exposure glass, until the **[Start]** key is pressed.

### PReference

p.13 "Placing Originals"

**3** Make the settings you require.

Standard	O Rea	dy					
Resolution	Set original and specify destination.						
Text	<b>e/#</b> \	<u>63</u> _					
Original Type	ŀ	Registration No	). Esnal l	işid AdH. F	edure:		
Auto Image Density	Freq. A	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ F		
] (Lighter ] Darker	LOODOIL ABC COMP ANY	COODO23 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	LOOOO4J NEW YORK OFFICE	COODOS TORON OFFIC		
Auto Detect Scan Area	X STORE	COODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	CODO 103 SAN FRAN CISCO	COOD11 SYDNE FFICE		

# Reference

p.30 "Scan Settings"

p.31 "Original Type"

p.32 "Image Density (Contrast)"

# 4 Specify a destination.

O Rea	ıdy				Informa	tion
Set original	and specify des	tination.				100%
<b>@</b> /\$	63_			To	tal: 0	
	Registration N	o. Monual I	nput 🕴 Adiv. F	seiures	,	
Freq.	AB CD E	F GH J	IJK LHN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	ام
COODO 13 ABC COMP ANY	BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	LOOOO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORONTO OFFICE	1000063 XYZ CO.L TD	1/2
2000073 X STORE	PARIS OF FICE	LOODO93 DETROIT FACTORY	<u>E000103</u> SAN FRAN CISCO	COODII3 SYDNEY O FFICE	<u>000123</u> LA FACTO RY	

### 🖉 Note

□ If you make a mistake, press the **[Clear/Stop]** key, and then enter the correct number.

### ✓ Reference

p.35 "Entering a Fax Number"

p.36 "Entering an E-mail Address"

p.37 "Using Destination Lists"

p.47 "Chain Dial", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

p.47 "Redial", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

# **5** When sending the same original to several destinations (broadcasting), press [Add] to specify the destinations.

Standard	O Rea	dy			
Resolution	Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.		
Text	<b>8/8</b> (	<u>ea</u> 0123	345678.	-	
Original Type	Add	Registration No	). Esperi	işer 🛛 Adv. F	eatures
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ F
	£000013	£000023	2000033	£000041	100005
(]Lighter Darker	ABC COMP ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFIC
Auto Detect	£000071	[00008]	£000093	2000103	000011
-	X STORE	PARIS OF	DETROIT	SAN FRAN	SYDNE
Scan Area		FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE

### 🖉 Note

- □ You do not have to press **[Add]** when adding a destination using the destination list.
- If you do not want to do a broadcast transmission, proceed to step 2.

# **6** Specify a destination.

O Rea	<b>dy</b> nd specify des	tination			Informa	ition (rm2)
<b>*</b>	63	anaton.		To	tal:	Prev.
	Registration N	o. Manual I	nput 🛛 Adiv. F	ociumes	l L	¥ Next
Freq. A8	B CD E	FGHJ	JK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	β
1000233 LONDON 0	ABC COMP	1000251 BERLIN 0	LOOO261 NEW YORK	1000273 TORONTO	XYZ COMP	
FFICE	ANY	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	ANY	
2000293 X STORE	E000301 PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	<u>COOO323</u> SAN FRAN CISCO	C000333 SYDNEY O FFICE	1000341 LA FACTO RY	

### 🖉 Note

- Press event to switch the destination between fax number and email address.
- If you want to specify another destination, repeat steps 3 and 3.

# **7** Press the **[Start]** key.

### 🖉 Note

Do not lift the ADF during scanning.

After scanning, the standby display appears.

Sending originals using the exposure glass

- ① Make sure that Memory TX is selected, if it is not, press [Memory TX].
- ② Place the first page of your original face down on the exposure glass.
- Specify a destination.
- ④ Make the scan settings you require.
- ⑤ Press the **[Start]** key. The machine starts scanning.

③ Place the next original on the exposure glass within 60 seconds after the machine has finished scanning the first original.



- ⑦ Repeat steps ④ to ⑥ for all originals.
- Place the last original, and then press [\*].

Checking the transmission settings

You can check the transmission settings (e.g. destination and transmission mode) on the display.

① Press the [Check Modes] key.



The following display appears.



### 🖉 Note

Press et as switch the destination between fax number and email address. ② After checking the settings on the display, press the [Check Modes] key.

The display before the **[Check Modes]** key was pressed appears.

# Stroadcasting sequence

If you dial several destinations for the same message (broadcasting), the messages are sent in the order in which they were dialed. If the fax message could not be transmitted, the machine redials that destination after the last destination specified for broadcasting. For example, if you specify four destinations, A through D, for broadcasting, and if the lines to destinations A and C are busy, the machine dials the destinations in the following order: A, B, C, D, A, and C. See p.79 "Simultaneous Broadcast", Facsimile Reference < Advanced Features>



# Checking the transmission progress

To check the transmission progress, print the TX file list. See p.25 "Printing a List of Files in Memory (Print TX File List)", *Facsimile Reference <Ad*vanced Features>.

# **Canceling a Memory Transmission**

Even when fax number and e-mail address are simultaneously specified, or only e-mail address is specified, you can cancel the mode using the same procedure. However, you cannot cancel the transmission of an Internet Fax document being sent.

# Before the Original Is Scanned

Use this procedure to cancel a transmission before pressing the **[Start]** key.

### Press the [Clear Modes] key.



### 🖉 Note

When documents are placed in the ADF, you can cancel transmission simply by removing them.

# While the Original Is Being Scanned

Use this procedure to cancel a transmission after pressing the **[Start]** key.

### Press the [Clear/Stop] key.



### 🖉 Note

- □ You can also cancel scanning by pressing **[Stop Scanning]**.
- □ Scanning may be completed while you are performing the cancel operation.

# While the Original Is Being Transmitted

### 🖉 Note

- □ If the transmission finishes while you are carrying out this procedure, it will not be canceled.
- If you cancel a message while it is being sent, the transmission is halted as soon as you finish the cancellation procedure. However, some pages of your message may have already been sent and received at the other end.

### Press the [Clear/Stop] key.



### 🖉 Note

You can also cancel a Memory Transmission by pressing [Change/Stop TX File].

# **2** Select the file you want to cancel.

Change/S	top TX File	Select file to stop	transmission	
Scanning	j Date/Time	Transmission Mode	Destination	Dest. O
150ct.	11:45	Memory TX	LONDON OFFICE	Ttl 1
i hesk	Alhanga Satil	ngs 🛛 Print File	Stop Transn	nission
- heck	Albanja Sati	ngs Prod File	Stop Transn	nission

### 🖉 Note

□ If the desired file is not shown, press [▲ Prev.] or [▼ Next] to find it.

# **3** Press [Stop Transmission].



# 🖉 Note

- □ To cancel another file, repeat steps 2 and 3.
- □ To cancel stopping transmission, press **[Save]**.

# 4 Press [Exit].



The standby display appears.

# Before the Transmission Is Started

Use this procedure to cancel a transmission after the original has been scanned.

# Press [Change/Stop TX File].

O Ready	Change/S	top TX File	Inform	ation	
Set original and specify d	estination.				99%
<b>@</b> / (0.3			To	tal: O	
Registration	No. Attenual	işirt Adv. F	selure:		
Freq. AB CD	EF GH I	IJK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	ام
2000233 2000243 LONDON 0 ABC COMP	BERLIN 0	CO00263 NEW YORK	TORONTO	KYZ COMP	
FFICE ANY	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	ANY	
C000293 C000303 X STORE PARIS OF	DETROIT	<u>COOO323</u> SAN FRAN	0000332 SYDNEY 0	1000341 LA FACTO	
FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE	RY	

The list of stored files being transmitted or waiting for transmission appears.

### **2** Select the file you want to cancel.

Change/Stop TX File	Select file to stop	transmission		
Scanning Date/Time	Transmission Mode	Destination	Dest.	Or
15Oct. 11:48	Confidential TX	NEW YORK OFFICE	Ttl 1	Ι
150ct. 11:48	Memory TX	BERLIN OFFICE	Ttl 1	Ι
150ct. 11:47	Memory TX	ABC COMPANY	Ttl 1	L
150ct. 11:47	Memory TX	LONDON OFFICE	Ttl 1	Ι
Check/Change Settin	ngs Print File	Stop Transmiss	ion	

### 🖉 Note

□ If the desired file is not shown, press [▲ Prev.] or [▼ Next] to find it.

# B Press [Stop Transmission].





# 🖉 Note

- □ To cancel another file, repeat steps 2 and 3.
- □ To cancel stopping transmission, press [Save].

4 Press [Exit].



The standby display appears.

# Immediate Transmission

With Immediate Transmission, when you press the **[Start]** key, the fax number is dialed immediately. The message is scanned and transmitted page by page without being stored in memory. This contrasts with Memory Transmission which scans all pages into memory before dialing the destination.

Immediate Transmission is useful if you want immediate confirmation that the message is being sent to the correct destination (just check the other terminal's Own Name or Own Fax Number on the control panel during transmission).

### Limitation

□ Internet Fax is executed in only Memory Transmission that starts transmission automatically after storing documents in memory. If you specify Immediate Transmission in Internet Fax, the mode is switched to Memory Transmission while an e-mail address is being entered.

### 🖉 Note

- You cannot send the same document to multiple destinations (broadcasting). Memory Transmission allows this function.
- You can have the machine set to Memory Transmission mode or Immediate Transmission mode right after the power is turned on. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

- □ You can have the machine return to the default transmission mode (Memory Transmission) or Immediate Transmission) after every transmission. You can change this so that the desired setting is maintained. See p.142 "General Settings / Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- □ When E-mail TX Results is programmed in a Quick Operation key, you can send notification of memory transmission results to specified e-mail addresses. The destination for notification is selected from Internet Fax destinations in the destination list. See p.82 "Transmission Result Report (Immediate Transmission)", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features> and p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- Make sure that Immed. TX is selected.

				15	001	2008 14:00
estination.			Informa	ation 100%	lmm T)	ed. Memory TX
		To	tal: O			
No. Moreal I	yeg 🛛 Adv. F	adures 📘			T	X File Status
EF GH I	JK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	lo-	R	X File Status
LONDON 0	LOOOO41 NEW YORK	TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2	Tran	smission Mode
[000093	000103	2000113	10	¦Læ	s	ub TX Mode
F DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY O FFICE	LA FACTO RY			Store File

### 🖉 Note

□ If it is not, press [Immed. TX].

### **2** Place the original.

### 🖉 Note

- You can scan a few pages of your original from the exposure glass and the remaining pages from the ADF. When you have finished scanning from the exposure glass, remove the original from the exposure glass and place the remaining pages in the ADF within ten seconds.
- To send two or more pages using the exposure glass, set them one page at a time.
- □ The original can be placed whenever, before the **[Start]** key is pressed.

### ✓ Reference

p.13 "Placing Originals"

Select the scan settings you require.

O Rea	dy			
Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.		
<i>@\#</i>	<u>63</u>			
F	legistration No	). Esnal l	işid AdH. F	edure:
Freq. AE	CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ
2000013	[00002] REDUTIN 0	1000033	1000041 NEW YORK	LOOODS
ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFIC
1000071	£000083	£000093	2000103	200011
X STURE	PARIS UF FICE	FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	FFICE
	O Reau Set original ar Freq. AB Freq. AB COODO11 ABC COMP ANCY X STORE	Concept         Ready           Set original and specify designed         Registration Nr.           Registration Nr.         Registration Nr.           Registration Nr.         Registration Nr.           Reg.         AB         CD0         E           C000013         REG.LIN         C000023         ABC COMP         BERLIN         N           ANY         FTICE         C0000072         C0000073         AAIS OF         PARIS OF           X STORE         PARIS OF         FICE         C0000073         C0000073         C0000074         C0000074         C0000075         C0000	Begistration No.         Horizont           Pegistration No.         Horizont           Pegistration No.         Horizont           Coouria         Coouria           X STORE         Partis Or Der Rationer           Partis Or Der Autory         Partory	O         Ready           Set original and specify destination.

# Reference

p.30 "Scan Settings"

# 4 Dial a destination.

O Rea	dy				Informa	tion
Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.				100%
<b>*</b>	<u>63</u> _			Tot	al: O	
Freq. AE	B CD E	F GH I	JK LHN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	م
ABC COMP ANY	COODE2 BERLIN O FFICE	COODO33 LONDON O FFICE	COODO41 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORONTO OFFICE	(00006) XYZ CO.L TD	1/2
X STORE	COOODE3 PARIS OF FICE	COODO91 DETROIT FACTORY	COODIOJ SAN FRAN CISCO	COODI12 SYDNEY O FFICE	2000123 LA FACTO RY	L.

### 🖉 Note

□ If you make a mistake, press the **[Clear/Stop]** key, and then enter the correct number.

### Reference

p.35 "Specifying a Destination"

p.47 "Chain Dial", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

p.47 "Redial", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

# **5** Press the **[Start]** key.

### 🖉 Note

□ Do not lift the ADF during scanning.

After transmission, the standby display appears.

# Sending originals using the exposure glass

- Make sure that Immed. TX is selected. If it is not, press [Immed. TX].
- ② Place the first page face down on the exposure glass.
- Dial a destination.
- ④ Make the scan settings you require.
- ⑤ Press the [Start] key.
- ③ Place the next original on the exposure glass within 10 seconds after the machine has finished scanning the first original.

Trans	smitting	0		Stop Trans	smission	Memory
Original:	vinin vinin V <sup>g.</sup>	9 sec., then p 634022	ress [Start].	If none, press	(#).	Dest. 1 se
<b>(#</b> )						
$\sim$						

- ⑦ Repeat steps ④ to ⑥ for all originals.
- (a) Place the last original, and then press [).

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
## **Canceling an Immediate Transmission**

# Before You Have Pressed the [Start] Key

Press the [Clear Modes] key.



## 🖉 Note

When the original is placed in the ADF, you can also cancel an Immediate Transmission by removing the original.

# After You Have Pressed the [Start] Key

**1** Press the **[Clear/Stop]** key, and then remove the original.



## 🖉 Note

- You can also cancel an Immediate Transmission by pressing [Stop Transmission].
- □ If the transmission finishes while you are carrying out this procedure, it will not be canceled.

2

## Scan Settings

You may want to send many different types of fax messages. Some of these may be difficult to reproduce at the receiver's end. However, your machine has three settings that you can adjust to help you transmit your document with the best possible image quality.

#### Resolution:

Standard, Detail, Super Fine (optional)

- Original Type: Text, Text/Photo, Photo
- Image Density (Contrast): Auto Image Density, Manual Image Density (seven levels), Combined Auto and Manual Image Density

## Resolution

Images and text are scanned into the machine by converting them to sequences of dots. The density of the dots determines the quality of the image and how long it takes to transmit. Therefore, images scanned at high resolution (Super Fine) have high quality but transmission takes longer. Conversely, low resolution (Standards) scanning results in lower quality but your original is sent more quickly. Select the setting that matches your needs based upon this trade off between speed and image clarity.

# Standard (8 x 3.85 lines/mm, 200 x 100 dpi)

Select for originals containing normal size characters.

- Detail (8 x 7.7 lines/mm, 200 x 200 dpi) Select for originals containing small characters or when you require greater clarity. This resolution is twice as fine as Standard.
- Super Fine (optional expansion memory required: 16 x 15.4 lines/mm, 400 x 400 dpi)

Select for originals with very fine details or when you require the best possible image clarity. This resolution is eight times finer than Standard.

## Limitation

- □ If the other party's machine does not support the resolution at which you are sending, this machine automatically switches to a resolution that is supported. You can check the resolution at which you sent actually. See p.154 "Printing the Journal", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*>
- Sending with Super Fine resolution requires that your machine has the optional expansion memory, and the other party's machine has the capability to receive fax messages at Super Fine resolution.

#### 🖉 Note

The machine supports Standard, Detail, and (with the optional expansion memory) Super Fine resolutions.

- □ You can select the resolution type that is selected right after the machine is turned on or modes are cleared with **[Scan End Reset]** under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.
- □ You can have the machine return to the resolution default setting after every transmission, with **[Text Size Priority]** under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.
- In Internet Fax transmission, the original is scanned using "Detail" for transmission, even if you select "Super Fine".

## 1 Press [Resolution].

Standard	() Rea	dy			
Resolution	Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.		
Text	<b>\$</b>	<u>63</u> _			
Original Type	Ĩ	Registration No	). Hanual I	iput 🛛 Adit. F	ed (Rec)
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ F
(Lighter Darker)	ABC COMP ANY	C000021 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	COODO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	COODOS TORON OFFIC
Auto Detect	1000073 X STORE	COODORD PARIS OF	COODO91 DETROIT	COOD 101 SAN FRAN	COOD11 SYDNE
Scan Area		FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE

**2** Select the resolution you require, and then press [OK].

Resolution	O Rea	dy		Change/S	top TX
Standard	Original rema	ins on exposur	e glass.		
Detail		<u>63</u> _			
	F	Registration No	). Estual I	nçagt 🕴 Adiel A	sine:
Super Fine	Freq. At	B CD E	F GH I	IJK LMN	OPQ
	1000251	[00024]	[00025]	[00026]	£0002
	LONDON 0 FFICE	ABC COMP ANY	BERLIN O FFICE	NEW YORK OFFICE	TORO OFFI
	1000293	£000301	0000312	1000321	000033
	X STORE	PARIS OF	DETROIT	SAN FRAN	SYDN
		FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFIC

## 🖉 Note

□ If you install the optional expansion memory, "Super Fine" will be displayed in the Resolution box.

## **Original Type**

If your original contains photographs, illustrations, or diagrams with complex shading patterns or grays, select the appropriate original type to optimize image clarity.

## Text

Select **[Text]** to send high-contrast black-and-white image originals. Use this setting even if your original contains text and photographs, or if you only want to send clearer text.

#### Text/Photo

Select **[Text/Photo]** to send an original containing both a high-contrast black-and-white image, such as text, and a halftone image, such as a photograph.

## Photo

Select **[Photo]** to send an original containing a halftone image, such as a photograph or a colour original.

## 🖉 Note

- □ If you select **[Text/Photo]** or **[Photo]**, the transmission will take longer than when **[Text]** is selected.
- □ If you send a fax message with **[Text/Photo]** or **[Photo]** and the background of the received image is dirty, reduce the density setting and resend the fax. See p.32 "Image Density (Contrast)".
- □ You can set the original type that is selected right after the machine is turned on or modes are cleared, with **[Original Type Priority]** under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

□ You can have the machine return to the original type default setting after every transmission, with [Scan End Reset] under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

#### Press [Original Type].

Standard	() Rea	dy			
Resolution	Set original a	nd specify des	tination.		
Text	<b>8/</b>	<u>63</u>			
Original Type	ŀ	Registration No	). Esnal l	nput 🛛 Adiy, A	wine:
Auto Image Density	Freq. A	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ
(]Lighter   Darker)	ABC COMP ANY	COODO23 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	COODO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON TORON OFFIC
Auto Detect Scan Area	10000073 X STORE	COODORI PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COOD 103 SAN FRAN CISCO	COODII Sydne FFICE

2 Select the original type you require, and then press [OK].

Original Type	O Ready Set original and specify destination.						
Text Text/Photo	Registration No. Horizal least Adv	. folues					
Photo	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LMN	OPQ					
	C000013      C000023      C000033      C000043        ABC      COMP      BERLIN      0      LONDON      NEW YOF        ANY      FFICE      FFICE      OFFICE	K TORO OFFI					
ОК	C000073      C000083      C000093      C000093        X STORE      PARIS OF FICE      DETROIT FACTORY      SAN FRA CISCO	N SYDN FFIC					

## Image Density (Contrast)

The text and diagrams on originals should stand out clearly from the paper they are on. If your original has a darker background than normal (for example, a newspaper clipping), or if the writing is faint, adjust the image density.

#### Auto Image Density

The appropriate density setting for the original is automatically selected.

#### Manual Image Density

Use manual image density to set image density yourself.

You can select one of seven image density levels.

#### Combined Auto and Manual Image Density

You can only adjust image density for photographs, illustrations, or diagrams if the original has a dark background.

You can select one of seven image density levels.

#### 🖉 Note

- Selecting [Text] or [Text/Photo] for the original type causes [Auto Image Density] to be selected.
- □ You can set the image density that is selected right after the machine is turned on or modes are cleared, with [Auto Image Density] under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- □ You can have the machine return to the image density default setting after every transmission, with [Scan End Reset] under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*>.

## **1** Select the type of image density.

#### Auto Image Density

Make sure that [Auto Image Density] is selected.

Standard	() Rea	dy					
Resolution	Set original and specify destination.						
Text	<b>8/#</b> \	63					
Original Type	j	Registration No	). Harai	işindi. 🛛 Adiy, A	wine:		
Auto Image Density	Freq. A	B CD E	F GH I	IJK LMN	OPQ		
(]Lighter Darker)	ABC COMP ANY	E000023 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	COODO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON TORON OFFIC		
Auto Detect Scan Area	10000073 X STORE	E000081 PARIS OF FICE	E000093 DETROIT FACTORY	E000101 SAN FRAN CISCO	COODII Sydne FFICE		

## 🖉 Note

If [Auto Image Density] has not been selected, press [Auto Image Density].

Manual Image Density

Make sure that [Auto Image Density] is not selected. If it has been selected, press [Auto Image Density] to turn it off.

## 🖉 Note

- If [Auto Image Density] has not been selected, proceed to step 2.
- Press [1 Lighter] or [Darker ] to adjust the density.

Standard	O Rea	dy					
Resolution	Set original a	Set original and specify destination.					
Text,Photo	<b>e</b> /# 1	<u>63</u> _					
Original Type	Ĩ	Registration No	). Estal l	işidt 🛛 Adiy, A	wine:		
Auto Image Density	Freq. A	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ		
(Lighter)	ABC COMP ANY	COODO23 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	COODO41 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON OFFIC		
Auto Detect	1000073	2000083	1000093	1000101 SAN EDAN	200011 SVDND		
Scan Area	A STURE	FICE	FACTORY	CISCO	FFICE		

Combined Auto and Manual Image Density

Make sure that [Auto Image Density] is selected.

#### 🖉 Note

If [Auto Image Density] has not been selected, press [Auto Image Density].

# Press [ Lighter] or [Darker ] to adjust the density.

The square moves.

Standard	() Rea	dy						
Resolution	Set original a	Set original and specify destination.						
Photo	<i>≊/∂</i> _ ₹	<u>63</u> _						
Original Type	F	Registration No	). Honual i	nput   Aciv. F	esiures.			
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LMN OPQ F							
(Lighter Darker)	ABC COMP ANY	ECOCOCCE BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON 0 FFICE	COOCO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORON OFFIC			
Auto Detect Scan Area	10000073 X STORE	COODORI PARIS OF FICE	LOOOD93 DETROIT FACTORY	COOD 103 SAN FRAN CISCO	COOD11 SYDNE FFICE			

# Mixing Scan Settings for a Multiple Page Original

When sending an original of several pages, you can select a different image density, resolution, and original type setting for each page.

Place the original, select the scan settings for the first page, dial, and then press the **[Start]** key as you would normally. Then follow one of the following two procedures.

#### 🖉 Note

It is recommended that originals be placed on the exposure glass when mixing scan settings for a multiple page original.

# When placing originals on the exposure glass

## 🖉 Note

- While the machine is beeping, you have about 60 seconds (10 seconds for Immediate Transmission) to select density, resolution, and original type. The remaining time is shown on the display.
- **1** Check which pages you want to scan with different settings.

**2** Remove the previous page and place the next page.

Select the image density, resolution, and original type.



## 🖉 Note

Adjust the settings for each page before you press the [Start] key.

When placing originals in the optional Auto Document Feeder

## 🖉 Note

Depending on what time the scan settings are adjusted, the settings may not be reflected in the resulting operation.

**1** Check which pages you want to scan with different settings.

2 Select the image density, resolution, and original type before the next page is scanned.

Standard	Scanning				
Resolution	Transmitti	ng scanned originals.			
Text	Original:	V <sup>IIII</sup> 0123456789			
Original Type					
Auto Image Density					
(Lighter Darker)					
Auto Detect					
Stat Anto					

# **Specifying a Destination**

You can specify the destination using one of three methods.

#### Fax number

p.35 "Entering a Fax Number"

#### E-mail address

p.36 "Entering an E-mail Address"

#### Destination list

p.37 "Using Destination Lists"

This section covers these functions and others in more detail.

## 🖉 Note

The display shows the percentage of free memory space for storing originals. Since fax numbers and email addresses are programmed in separate memory, dialing fax numbers using the number keys does not change the percentage on the display.

## **Entering a Fax Number**

Enter numbers directly using the key pad on the right side of the control panel.

## 🖉 Note

- Maximum length of a fax number: 128 digits.
- You can insert pauses and tones in a fax number. See p.35 "Pause", p.36 "Tone".

**1** Enter the fax number using the number keys.

() Rea	Informa	tion				
Set original ar	nd specify dest	tination.				100%
<b>*</b>	<u>93</u> 012	645678.	-	F	rogDest	
Add	Registration No	). Monual I	işer 🛛 Adv. F	eatures		
Freq. AE	B CD E	F GH I	JK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	6
ABC COMP	6000023 BERLIN 0	2000033 LONDON 0	COODO41 NEW YORK	TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2
LANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	TD	
2000073 X STORE	COOODED PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	COODIOJ SAN FRAN CISCO	COODINI SYDNEY O FFICE	LA FACTO RY	

## 🖉 Note

- If you make a mistake, press the [Clear/Stop] key, and then enter again.
- □ If the optional extra G3 interface unit is installed, select G3 before you proceed to the next step. See p.59 "Changing the Line Port", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- Press [ProgDest] after entering the fax number to store the fax number in the destination list.

#### Pause

Press the **[Pause/Redial]** key when dialing or storing a number to insert a pause of about two seconds.



## 🖉 Note

- □ You cannot insert a pause before the first digit of a fax number. If you press the **[Pause/Redial]** key at the first digit, a redial occurs. See p.47 "Redial", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*>.
- □ A pause is shown as a "-" on the display.

() Rea	dy				Informa	tion
	<u>63</u> 0123	anadon 3			ProgDest   1	1002
Freq. AE	Registration No 3 CD E	D. Monual I F GH I	npix Adv. F .JK LMN	eatures OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	۵
ABC COMP ANY	E000023 BERLIN O FFICE	LOODO33 LONDON O FFICE	LOODO43 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORONTO OFFICE	1000063 XYZ CO.L TD	1/2
2000073 X STORE	COOODED PARIS OF FICE	COODO93 DETROIT FACTORY	COODIOJ SAN FRAN CISCO	COODINI SYDNEY O FFICE	LA FACTO RY	<b>T</b>

## 🖉 Note

You can also program numbers including pauses in destination lists.

#### Tone

This function allows a machine connected to a pulse dialing line to send tonal signals (for example if you want to use a special service on a tone dialing line). When you press the **[Tone]** key, the machine dials the number using tonal signals.

## Limitation

□ Certain services may be unavailable when using the **[Tone]** key.

## 🖉 Note

□ A tone is shown as a "•" on the display.

Using the **[Tone]** key with On Hook Dial

## Press the [On Hook Dial] key.



- 2 Enter the fax number using the number keys.
- B Press the [Tone] key.



4 Enter the number you want to tone dial using the number keys.

## **Entering an E-mail Address**

When using Internet Fax transmission, specify the e-mail address in place of the fax number.

#### 🖉 Note

□ You can enter up to 128 characters.

**1** Make sure that *k* is displayed in the destination display column.



## 🖉 Note

□ If it is not displayed, press .

## 2 Press [Manual Input].

O Rea	dy				Inform:	ation
Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.				99%
<b>@</b> #	D. To:			To	tal: O	
F	Registration N	). Manual I	nput 🛛 Adv. A	seium:		
Freq. AE	CD E	FGHJ	JK LHN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	lo-
ABC COMP	000021 BERLIN 0	1000033 LONDON 0	COODO43 NEW YORK	COOCOSI TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1
ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	TD	
[00013] ALL	C000143 +@+	2000153				
ALL BRAN CHES	MAIN OFF ICE	MAIN OFF ICE				

Enter the e-mail address destination and then press [OK].



## 🖉 Note

- If you enter an incorrect character, press [Backspace] or [Delete All]. Then, re-enter the characters correctly.
- To change the e-mail address after pressing [OK], press [Edit Dest.], re-enter an e-mail address, and then press [OK].

## PReference

"Entering Text", General Settings Guide

The destination is specified.

O Rea Set original ar	<b>dy</b> nd specify dest	tination.			Inform	ation 99%
Add	ProgDest 1					
Freq. AE	CD E	F GH 1	JK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	
ANY COODI33 ANN ALL BRAN CHES	FFICE COODIAL + HEHH MAIN OFF ICE	FFICE COOD 153 MAIN OFF ICE	OFFICE 1234	OFFICE	TD	J

## 🖉 Note

Press [ProgDest] in this order to store the entered e-mail address in the address book.

## **Using Destination Lists**

When you program a destination number into a destination list, you can specify the destination by just selecting the Quick Dial key from the destination list.

The programmed name appears on Quick Dial key.

Pressing est switches the destination list between fax number destination and e-mail address destination.

If you frequently send the same message to more than one place, program these numbers and/or e-mail addresses into a Group. Then you can send messages to all the destinations in that Group with just a few keystrokes. You can also program a name for the Group (for example, "Branch Offices"), this will be displayed before you press the **[Start]** key.

#### Preparation

In the destination list, program individual fax number, e-mail address and/or groups of destinations. See "Registering a Fax Destination", "Registering an E-mail Destination", and "Registering a New Group", *General Settings Guide*.

## Limitation

Group Dial can be used only for Memory Transmission; it cannot be used for Immediate Transmission. The machine automatically changes to Memory Transmission when you use Group Dial.

#### 🖉 Note

- When you press the title key above the destination keys, the destination keys programmed in that title key appear.
- To check the contents of Quick Dial, print the destination list. See "Key Operator Tools", General Settings Guide.
- □ A stored name can be printed out on the first page of a received fax at the other end. See p.74 "Label Insertion", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.
- □ To check the contents of the Groups, print the list. See "Key Operator Tools", *General Settings Guide*.
- A total of 500 destinations (per message) can be programmed for Group Dial.
- Place the original, and then select the scan settings you require.
- Press event to switch the destination to fax number or e-mail address.

#### Press the title key where the desired destination is progammed.

For example, if you want to specify "NEW YORK OFFICE" programmed in "LMN", press [LMN].

() Rea	dy				Informa	ition
Set original ar	nd specify des	tination.				99%
m A t	63			Tot	al:	
	-				0	
F	Registration N	). Manual I	भूम्स <b>स्</b> राप्त ह	સંગ્રંભ		
Freq. AE	CD E	FGHJ	JK	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	
ABC COMP	1000021 BERLIN 0	1000033 LONDON 0	COODO41 NEW YORK	TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2
ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	TD	
1000071	2800001	£000093	2000103	2000113	2000123	<u>ا</u>
X STORE	PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY 0 FFICE	LA FACTO RY	V

#### 🖉 Note

There are three types of title for destination lists; "Title 1", "Title 2", and "Title 3". The above display shows "Title 1".

Switching the titles of Destination lists

Press 🔍.

Press [Switch Title].

**3** Select the type of the title, and then press [Exit].

**4** Select a destination.

O Ready		nformation
Set original and specify destination.		100%
<b>(</b> )	Total: 0	
Registration No. Edward Input Adv. Foolures		
Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LHN OPQ RS	T UVW	XYZ O
C000233      C000343      C000263        LONDON 0      LA FACTO      NEW YORK        FFICE      RY      OFFICE		

#### 🖉 Note

Press even to switch the destination between fax number and email address. Specifying a single destination

Press the Quick Dial key programmed with the desired destination.



## 🖉 Note

- □ If the desired Quick Dial key is not shown, press [▲] and
   [▼] to scroll through the list.
- □ To cancel the selection, press the selected Quick Dial key again. You can also press the 【Clear / Stop】 key to cancel the selection.
- □ To select more destinations, repeat steps **3** and **4**.

Specifying a group of destinations

Press the Quick Dial key programmed with the desired group.



## 🖉 Note

□ If the desired Quick Dial key is not shown, press [▲] and
 [▼] to look through the list.

- □ To cancel the selection, press the selected Quick Dial key again. You can also press the **[Clear / Stop]** key to cancel the selection.
- □ To cancel any destination(s) among the group, press [▲ Prev.] or [▼ Next] to display the desired destination. Then, press the [Clear / Stop] key.
- Quick Dial keys with fax numbers and e-mail addresses programmed to them appear in both fax destination and Internet Fax destination.
- □ When a destination where neither fax number nor email address are programmed is included in the specified group, "The specified group contains some invalid destination(s). Do you want to select only valid destination(s)?" message appears. Press [Select] to specify destinations where the fax number or the e-mail address is programmed. Press [Cancel] to change the destination.
- □ To select more groups, repeat steps 3 and 4.

## **5** Press the **[Start]** key.

## Searching for a Destination

Use this procedure to search through the destination lists for a particular destination.

- 2
- Search by Destination Name

p.40 "Search by Destination Name"

- Search by Fax Number p.41 "Search by Fax Number"
- Search by E-mail Address p 42 "Search by E-mail Address

p.42 "Search by E-mail Address" ID

 Specifying a Registration Number p.43 "Specifying a Registration Number"

## Search by Destination Name

## 🖉 Note

- The search returns only destinations whose beginnings match the entered name.
- □ This function distinguishes between small and capital letters.
- **1** Press **e** to switch the destination to fax number or e-mail address.
- **2** Press , the magnifier icon.

							2003 14:54
est	ination.			Informa	tion 100%	Imm T>	ed. Memory TX
			To	tal: O			
No	. Manual I	yer Adv. F	wiaw 📗			T	<pre>&lt; File Status</pre>
E	GH I	JK LMN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	<u></u>	R	( File Status
	LONDON 0	LOOOO43 NEW YORK	COORDED TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2	Tran	smission Mode
	E000093	C000103	C000113	10 (00012)		S	ub TX Mode
	DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY O FFICE	la facto Ry	▼		Store File

**3** Press [Search by Dest. Name].

Search/Switch List	Select item.
Search by Dest. Name	
Search by FactNo	
Search by E-mail	
Switch Title	Search

4 Enter a destination name to search for, and then press [OK].



A search-in-progress message appears.

When the search is finished, a result appears.

## 🖉 Note

- □ If you press **[Fax]** or **[E-mail]** on the search result display, you can switch between fax destination and e-mail destination.
- □ A warning appears if the search returns more than 100 items. Press **[OK]** to proceed to step **5**.

## **5** Select a destination.



## 🖉 Note

- □ If the desired destination does not appear, use [▲] or [▼] to scroll through the list.
- If the search returns more than 100 destinations, only 100 will appear. Change the destination name to view fewer destinations.

## Search by Fax Number

## Limitation

You can search by fax number only. To search by e-mail address, see p.42 "Search by E-mail Address".

## 🖉 Note

- The search returns only destinations whose beginnings match the entered number.
- **1** Press **e** to switch the destination to fax number.

**2** Press , the magnifier icon.

				19	ULI 2003 14:04
estination.			Informa	tion 100%	Immed. Memory TX TX
		Τσ	tal: 0		
No. 🛛 Ademaal la	yer Adv. F	aders 👘			TX File Status
EF GH I	JK LMN (	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	l a	RX File Status
0000033	LOOOO41 NEW YORK	TORONTO	XYZ CO.L	1/2	Transmission Mode
[FFILE]	1000101	10FF10E	10 [000123	الشاز	Sub TX Mode
DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY 0 FFICE	la facto Ry		Store File

## B Press [Search by Fax No.].



## 🖉 Note

□ If [Search by Fax No.] appears dimmed, press [Fax] on the right of the display, and then press [Search by Fax No.].

	Vialling	15 UCI	2003 15:14
			Destination:
			Fax
			E-mail
			Selected:
			0
			[ n.a. ]
J			EXI

4 Enter a number to search for, and then press [OK].



## 🖉 Note

□ If you enter a wrong number, press [←]/[→] and [Clear], and then enter the number again.

A search-in-progress message appears.

When the search is finished, a result appears.



□ A warning appears if the search returns more than 100 items. Press **[OK]** to proceed to step **5**.

## **5** Select a destination.

	Select item.		
Ľ	000013	ABC COMPANY	0123456789
1	00002]	BERLIN OFFICE	0123678945
ľ	000033	LONDON OFFICE	0123894567
Ľ	00004]	NEW YORK OFFICE	012356789
1	000053	TORONTO OFFICE	012398765
<u> </u>			
	Sean	ch	

## 🖉 Note

□ If the desired destination does not appear, use [▲] or [▼] to scroll through the list.

#### Limitation

□ If the search rerurns more than 100 destinations, only 100 will appear. Change the number to view fewer destinations.

## Search by E-mail Address

#### Limitation

You can search by e-mail address only. To search by fax number, see p.41 "Search by Fax Number".

#### 🖉 Note

The search returns only destinations whose beginnings match the entered e-mail address.

Press et to switch the destination to e-mail address. **2** Press , the magnifier icon.

	15 UCI 2003 14:54
estination. 1009	Memory TX TX
Total: O	
No. Monual input Adiv. Facilities	TX File Status
EF GH IJK LMN OPO RST UVW XYZ 🕰	RX File Status
CO00033      C000043      C000053      C000063        D      LONDON 0      NEW YORK      TORONTO      XYZ CO.L      1/2	Transmission Mode
	Sub TX Mode
F DETROIT SAN FRAN SYDNEY O LA FACTO FACTORY CISCO FFICE RY	Store File

## B Press [Search by E-mail].

Search/Switch List	Select item.
Search by Dest. Name	
Seach by Facility	
Search by E-mail	
Switch Title	Search

#### 🖉 Note

□ If [Search by E-mail] appears dimmed, press [E-mail] on the right of the display, and then [Search by E-mail].



4 Enter an e-mail address to search for, and then press [OK].

15 UCI 2003 11:52
←      →      Bettep L0      Teble All        6      7      8      0      -      -        y      u      i      0      P      []      ]        s      h      j      k      i      ;      _      _
b n m , . / 8 Space
Cancel

2

## 🖉 Note

□ If you enter a wrong e-mail address, press [←]/[→] and [Back-space]/[Delete All], and then enter the e-mail address again.

A search-in-progress message appears.

When the search is finished, a result appears.

## 🖉 Note

□ A warning appears if the search returns more than 100 items. Press **[OK]** to proceed to step **5**.

## **5** Select a destination.



## 🖉 Note

□ If the desired destination does not appear, use [▲] or [▼] to scroll through the list.

## Limitation

□ If the search rerurns more than 100 destinations, only 100 will appear. Change the e-mail address to view fewer destinations.

# Specifying a Registration Number

Use this procedure to select a destination by specifying a registration number.

Press et to switch the destination to fax number or e-mail address.



() Rea	dy				Informa	tion
Set original a	nd specify des	tination.				100%
<b>@</b> /\$	63			To	tal: 0	
]	Registration N	). Assual	फ़्रम् - <del>२</del> .१२	aciume:		
Freq. A	B CD E	FGHJ	JK	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	<u>a</u>
ABC COMP	E000023 BERLIN O	1000033 London 0	COODO41 NEW YORK	COOCOSC TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2
ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	TD	*
2000073 X STORE	COODES PARIS OF FICE	COODO91 DETROIT FACTORY	CO00101 SAN FRAN CISCO	COODINA SYDNEY O FFICE	1000123 LA FACTO RY	T

The registration number entry display appears.

**3** Enter a registration number using the number keys.

O Rea	dy				Informa	ation
Set original ar	nd specify dest	tination.				99%
<b>@</b> /#. 1	æ	-		Tot	al: O	
Freq. 1 A	egistration No	E CH I	INTERNE	oriunis Opq   rst	UVW XYZ	ام
COODO12 ABC COMP	<u>000023</u> BERLIN 0	2000033 LONDON 0	2000041 NEW YORK	1000053 TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.L	1/2
ANT	IFF IUE	FFICE	UFFICE	UFFICE		*
X STORE	PARIS OF FICE	DETROIT	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY O FFICE	LA FACTO RY	V

## 🖉 Note

□ You do not need to enter the first zeros of a registration number when the display prompts you to enter five digits. If you do not enter 5 digits, press the **[#]** key to complete the entry.

The corresponding destination appears.

() Rea	dy				Informa	tion
Set original a	nd specify des	tination.				99%
Add	C. 012 00053 TORON Registration No	98765	işiat 📕 Adv. F	Tot 'eatures	al: 1	
Freq. A	B CD E	FGHJ	JK	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	0
ABC COMP	E000021 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON 0 FFICE	COODO41 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORONTO OFFICE	1000063 XYZ CO.L TD	1/2
1000071 X STORE	COODORS PARIS OF FICE	COODO93 DETROIT FACTORY	COODIO3 SAN FRAN CISCO	COODI12 SYDNEY O FFICE	1000123 LA FACTO RY	

## 🖉 Note

- The Title word key switches to that which the specified destination is programmed in.
- □ If the "Cannot find the specified Registration No." message appears, the specified registration number is wrong. Press [Exit], check the registration number again, and then follow the procedure from step **]**.
- □ If the "No valid destination under the specified No." message appears, the ever key is wrong. Press [Exit], and then follow the procedure from step ].

## Reception

There are two ways you can set up your machine to handle incoming calls:

- Manual Reception (external telephone required)
- Auto Reception

You can change the reception mode only if a standard G3 line is used.

You cannot change the reception mode when a line other than the standard G3 line (G3-2) is used.

#### Manual Reception

When a telephone call comes in, the machine rings. If the call is a fax message, you must switch manually to facsimile mode.

## Auto Reception

When a telephone call comes in, the machine automatically receives it as a fax message. Use this setting on a dedicated fax line.

## 🖉 Note

□ The external telephone is required to use this machine as a telephone.

## Switching the Reception Mode

You can switch reception modes using the Reception Settings menu (under Facsimile Features). See p.144 "Reception Settings", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

If you program a Quick Operation key with Switch Reception Mode, you can switch reception mode quickly.

## 🖉 Note

□ You can only use this function after programming a Quick Operation key as the reception mode switch with **[Quick Operation Key (1 to 3)]** under Gen. Settings/Adjust. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

#### Press the [Switch RX Mode] Quick Operation key.

					5 001	2003 12:40
estination.			Info	rmation 10.0%	Imn	ned. Memory X TX
		To	tal:		S	vitch RX Mode
No.   Missual II	yer Adv. F	adure:	•			X File Status
EF GH I	JK LMN I	DPQ RST	UV# XY	z 🔍	F	IX File Status
	LOODO43 NEW YORK	TORONTO	1000061 XYZ CO.	1/2	Tra	smission Mode
[000009]	C000103	C000113	10 £000123	٢		Sub TX Mode
F DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY 0 FFICE	LA FACT RY			Store File

# **2** Select the reception mode, and then press [OK].



The standby display appears.

## 🖉 Note

□ To cancel the selection, press [Cancel].

# Receiving a Fax in Manual Reception Mode

- **1** When the machine rings, pick up the handset of the external telephone.
- If you hear beeps, press the [Start] key or the [Start Manual RX] key. (The [Start] key is only available in facsimile mode when an original is not placed.)
- **3** Replace the handset of the external telephone. The machine will start receiving.

#### Limitation

 When printing documents stored in the Document Server, the [Start Manual RX] key or the [Start] key cannot be used to switch to facsimile mode. Press the [2] key of the external telephone.

# 3. Using Internet Fax Functions

# **Internet Fax Functions**

The optional printer/scanner unit is required.

This machine converts scanned document images to e-mail format and transmits the data over the Internet.

The e-mail sent by this machine can be received by another Internet Fax machine. Instead of dialing the telephone number of the destination you want to send to, you enter the relevant e-mail address.

You can also print or forward received e-mail messages.



## 🖉 Note

- □ This machine must be connected to a LAN and set up correctly in order to use its Internet Fax functions. See *Network Guide*.
- □ The Internet Fax function supported by this machine is compliant with ITU-T Rec. T.37. See p.198 "Compatible Machines", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*
- □ You can receive e-mail messages with an attached TIFF-F image from computers.

## **Internet Fax Precautions**

- Internet Fax communicates with a server over a LAN. It cannot communicate directly with other parties.
- If a transmission is not successful, this machine usually receives an e-mail error notification. See p.191 "Server-Generated Error E-mail", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*. However, e-mail error notifications may not be transmitted for various reasons. We recommend you confirm receipt of important document by calling the other party.
- The level of security for Internet communications is low. We recommend you use the telephone network for confidential communications.
- Voice communication is not supported over a LAN.
- Internet Fax delivery might be delayed due to network congestion. Use a standard fax whenever communication is time sensitive.
- If you use this machine with a dial-up connection, the Auto E-mail Reception function accesses the provider's e-mail server via telephone line and this may incur call charges even if you do not receive e-mail. To reduce the frequency of server access, specify a large E-mail Reception Interval. For the E-mail Reception Interval setting, see "Settings You Can Change with User Tools–File Transfer", *Network Guide*.

## Functions Not Supported by E-mail Transmission

The following functions are supported with standard fax transmission, but not with Internet Faxing.

- Immediate Transmission
- Confidential Transmission
- ID Transmission
- Polling Transmission
- Chain Dial
- Transmission by SUB Code
- On Hook Dial
- Manual Dial
- JBIG Transmission
- Batch Transmission
- ECM (Error Correction Mode)
- Memory File Transfer

## Functions Not Supported by E-mail Reception

The following functions are supported with standard fax reception, but not with Internet Faxing.

- Confidential Reception
- Memory Lock Reception
- Polling Reception
- SUB Code Reception
- Authorized Reception
- Reception File Print Quantity

## Sending Internet Fax Documents

#### Preparation

You need to make System Settings beforehand. See "Setting Up the Machine on a Network", *Network Guide*.

This section describes how to scan a document into this machine's memory and send it as e-mail. Specify the destination's e-mail address instead of fax number.

You can send Internet Fax documents only by Memory Transmission. If you specify Immediate Transmission in Internet Fax, the mode is switched to Memory Transmission when one email address or more is specified.

When sending documents, you can set e-mail options using [Sub TX Mode].

You can set the following options:

#### Enter Subject

Allows you to enter a subject for the document you want to send.

#### 🖉 Note

- For convenience, program frequently-used subject. "Urgent", and "High" are programmed as default. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools-File Transfer", Network Guide.
- □ You can enter up to 64 characters in total.
- □ If you send e-mail without setting a subject/text in "E-mail Options" under "Sub TX Mode", the subject is automatically inserted. For more details about how a subject is automatically inserted, see p.55 "About the E-mail Subject".
- □ You cannot send a subject only as e-mail without an original.

#### Enter Text

Allows you to enter the text to be transmitted.

#### 🖉 Note

- To enter text, program it beforehand. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools-File Transfer", Network Guide.
- □ You cannot send a text only without an original.

#### Reception Notice

You can confirm sent documents were properly received using email or Journal.

#### BCC Transmission

E-mails are sent to all specified destinations as bcc.

#### Important

- □ If power outage lasts about an hour, or the machine is disconnected from the power outlet for about an hour, documents stored in the fax machine's memory are deleted. If any document is deleted, the Power Failure Report is automatically printed out when the main power switch is turned on. Use this report to check which documents were deleted. Simply turning off the power by pressing the Operation switch does not delete stored documents. See p.189 "Power Failure Report", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- You may not be able to send large files as e-mail, depending on email environment conditions.
- □ The level of security for Internet communications is low. Use of the telephone network is recommended for confidential communications.

## Limitation

When available memory is low, you may not be able to send Internet Fax documents.

## 🖉 Note

- Because this machine sends documents as e-mail messages with an attached TIFF-F image, viewer applications are required in order to view documents when they are received on a computer.
- You can limit the size of transmitted e-mail messages in "E-mail Settings" of "Fax Features". See p.145
  "E-mail Settings", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.
- □ See p.60 "Received Images" for how e-mail is actually received by the computer when it is sent with mail options selected.
- When you send an Internet Fax document specifying a user code, and the e-mail address is set as the routing destination of the specified user code, a Communication Result Report is sent after the transmission is completed. This makes it possible to verify the result of a transmission.
- You can specify fax destination and Internet Fax destination simultaneously.
- You cannot send e-mails to destinations as cc.

When you set an e-mail option, press [Sub TX Mode].

				1	DUU	2003 14:54
estination.			Informa	tion 100%	Imm T)	ed. Memory ( TX
		To	tal: O			
No. Manual in	pirt 🛛 Adiy, F	adures 👘			Т	X File Status
EF GH I	JK LMN I	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	ı گ	R	X File Status
LONDON 0	NEW YORK	TORONTO	1000063 XYZ CO.L	1/2	Tran	smission Mode
1000093	E000103	2000113	000123		S	ub TX Mode
F DETROIT FACTORY	SAN FRAN CISCO	SYDNEY O FFICE	la facto Ry	T		Store File

If you are not setting e-mail options, proceed to step **5**.

## 2 Press [E-mail Options].

	5 OCT 2003 TT:TZ
Information	Immed. Memory
estination. 100%	
Total: O	
No. Manual Input Adv. Fociumes	TX File Status
ок	RX File Status
2 Sided Original Stamp E-mail Options	Transmission Mode
	Sub TX Mode
Auto Document Select Stored File Options	Store File

To enter the subject

• Press [Change] for Enter Subject.

(	) Ready				Information	n 11192/
(	<b>*//</b>			Το	tal: O	
- 1000 A	E-mail Options	Set fu	nctions.			
1000 million	► Enter Subject	* None		Change	► BCC TX	
	► Enter Text	* None		Change		
	► Recept. Notice		ON	OFF		
						C

There are two methods of entering a subject: Selecting from programmed subjects, or entering characters directly. If you are entering characters, proceed to step **3**.

# 2 Select the subject from the displayed list.

Subject			
Ma	nual Input		
0	Irsent]	* Nol Programmed	* N
	High]	≭ोर्थने हेत्र कुल्लाकर	*N
* 14	Programmed	* विने मिल्लाना स्व	*N
* No	Programmed	* Nol Programmed	*N

The selected subject appears in the manual input column.

Manual Input	[Ursent]	
[Urgent]	* Nel Programmed	1*
[High]	*Nei Frogrammed	*
* Nel Programmed	* Nel Propansed	*
* Nol Programmed	* Noi Programmed	1*

## 🖉 Note

 You can enter extra characters after the selected subject. If you do not need to enter extra characters, proceed to step **5**.

#### Press [Manual Input].

Manual Input	[Urgent]	
[Urgent]	* Nel Programmed	*N
[High]	* Nei Fregranned	*N
* Not Programmed	*Nel Impanied	*N
* Not Programmed	* Noi Frogrammed	*N

**4** After entering the subject, press [OK].



## $\mathcal{P}$ Reference

"Entering Text", General Settings Guide

Entered characters appear in the manual input column.

	Subject		
	Manual Input	[Urgent]REPORT	
	[Urgent]	* Nol Programmed	* N(
	[High]	* থিলিক্রালালা	* N(
Ì	HELLO	*Nel Impanied	* N(
	* Nol Programmed	* Noi Programmed	* N(

## 🖉 Note

You can add a programmed subject after the entered subject. Select the subject from the displayed subjects.

#### • Press [OK].

[U	rgent]REPORT	
	* Nol Programmed	* Nol Programmed
	* Noi Programmed	* Nei Frequenced
	* Nol Programmed	* Nel Programmed
٦Ē	* Nol Fregrammed	* Nol Programmed

#### To enter the text Press [Change] for Enter Text. O Ready ·/ C3 ۵ Furnail Ontions Set functions Enter Subject ► BCC TX \* None Change Change ► Enter Text \* None ► Recept, Notice ON OFF **2** Select a text, and then press [OK].



## To set reception notice

# Select [ON] or [OFF] for Recept. Notice.



## Reference

p.56 "Confirming Reception"

## To set BCC transmission

## Select [Yes] or [No] for BCC TX.



## B Press [OK].



## 4 Press [OK].



## **5** Place the original.

## 🖉 Note

You can send the first few pages from the exposure glass then the remaining pages from the ADF. After you remove the last page from the exposure glass, you have 60 seconds to insert the remaining pages in the ADF.

- Note that you cannot place pages on the exposure glass after you have started using the ADF.
- □ The original can be placed either in the ADF or on the exposure glass, until the **[Start]** key is pressed.

#### PReference

p.13 "Placing Originals"

**6** Select the scan settings you require.

Standard	O Ready
Resolution	Set original and specify destination.
Text	<b>(2) ((</b> ))
Original Type	Registration No. Manual Input Adv. Seduces
Auto Image Density	Freq. AB CD EF GH IJK LMN OPQ I
(Lighter Darker)	C000013      C000023      C000033      C000043      C00004        ABC      COMP      BERLIN 0      LONDON 0      NEW YORK      TORON        ANY      FFICE      FFICE      OFFICE      OFFICE      OFFICE
Auto Detect Scan Area	1000133 388 1000143 459 ALL BRAN MAIN OFF CHES ICE

## 🖉 Note

- In Internet Fax transmission, the original is scanned using "Detail" resolution for transmission, even if you select "Super Fine".
- When using the Internet Fax function, documents transmitted are sent at A4 width. Documents larger than A4 are reduced to A4 width.

## 

p.30 "Resolution"

p.31 "Original Type"

p.32 "Image Density (Contrast)" **2** Specify the e-mail address.



## 🖉 Note

□ If *&* is not displayed in the destination display column, press ■ .

## Reference

p.36 "Entering an E-mail Address"

p.37 "Using Destination Lists"

p.47 "Redial", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

**8** To send the same document to multiple destinations, press [Add].

() Rea	dy				Inform	ation
Set original a	nd specify des	tination.				99%
	🧞 To: al	bc®def.com	pany.com	ľ	ProgDest	
Add	Registration N	). Edit De	st. 🛛 Adv. F	eatures		
Freq. A	B CD E	FGHJ	JK	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	ام
2000013	1000021	1000031	1000041	1000051 TOPONTO	1000061	-
ANY	FFICE	FFICE	OFFICE	OFFICE	TD TD	J
0000133 288		1000153	1000183 488			
CHES	ICE	ICE	1234			

To send e-mail to one destination only, proceed to step **D**.

## 🖉 Note

□ It is not necessary to press **[Add]** when adding destinations using the destination list.

## **9** Specify the next destination.

O Rea	dy				Inform	ation
Set original an	id specify des	tination.				99%
<b>*</b>	🏚 То:			To	tal: 3	
F	legistration N	). Manual I	nput 🛛 Adiv. F	osiures 👘		
Freq. AE	CD E	F GH J	JK LHN	OPQ RST	UVW XYZ	ام
LOODO13 ABC COMP ANY	E000023 BERLIN O FFICE	LONDON O FFICE	LOODO41 NEW YORK OFFICE	TORONTO OFFICE	<u>1000063</u> XYZ CO.L TD	]
CO00133 ARE All Bran Ches	COOO143+⊞+ MAIN OFF ICE	CODO 153 MAIN OFF ICE				-

## 🖉 Note

- Press et as witch the destination between fax number and email address.
- □ To specify more destinations, repeat steps ③ and ⑤.

## **1** Press the **[Start]** key.

This starts reading the document into memory. The e-mail send operation starts after the read operation is complete. When scanning is complete, the Communicating indicator lights and transmission starts.

## 🖉 Note

- With a large volume of document, it may take some time before transmission starts. This is due to the time this machine requires to convert the data in memory.
- To cancel transmission of an Internet Fax, see p.57 "Canceling a Transmission of an Internet Fax".

## About the E-mail Subject

If no subject is specified for "Enter Subject / Text" under "E-mail Options", a subject is automatically inserted. The subject is different according to the setting of Stamp Sender Name.

- When a name is set to Stamp Sender Name:
  - From "Stamp Sender Name" Fax Message NO.xxxx.
- When a Stamp Sender Name is set to Do not Stamp:
  - If Own Fax Number and Own Name are programmed: From "Own Fax Number" ("Own Name") (Fax Message NO.xxxx)
  - If only Own Fax Number is programmed: From "Own Fax Number" (Fax Message NO.xxxx)
  - If only Own Name is programmed: From "Own Name" (Fax Message NO.xxxx)
  - If neither Own Fax Number nor Own Name are programmed: Fax Message NO.xxxx

#### 🖉 Note

"xxxx" is the document number that appears in the Journal.

## PReference

p.75 "Selecting transmission options for a single transmission", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

## ÇE-mail Text

When Internet Fax e-mail is sent to computer, the following information is always inserted in the e-mail text. To check the host name and e-mail address, see "Settings You Can Change with User Tools", *Network Guide*.

This e-mail was sent from "Host Name" (product name)

Queries to: "Administrator's e-mail address"

## **Confirming Reception**

When Reception Notice is set under "E-mail Options", the receiver sends back a reception notice message. Once the reception notice message has been received, "OK" appears in the Result column of Journal, allowing the originator to verify that the transmission has been received.

#### Limitation

The Reception Notice feature is only available if the receiver supports MDN (Message Disposition Notification).

#### 🖉 Note

If your fax is not received normally, "Error" appears in the Result column.

- □ Information regarding the last 200 messages is recorded, but only the last 50 communications appear in Journal. If you do not receive a reception notice message for one of the last 50 communications from the receiver's machine, you may not be able to confirm that the email has been received by the Journal's Result column.
- □ If you specify mailing list addresses, do not set for Reception Notice. Otherwise, you will receive multiple reception notice messages from e-mail recipients, and the Result column will be overwritten each time a new notice message is received. However, if you receive a reception notice message indicating an error, "Error" appears in the Result column and will not be overwritten, even if you subsequently receive a reception notice message as "OK" following the error message.
- Reception notice results are only shown in Journal. The Result column in all other files, lists, and transmission reports show "--".
- □ The Reception notice messages themselves are not recorded in Journal.
- □ The reception notice can be printed out. This can be set with user parameters. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>* (switch 21, bit 0).
- You cannot broadcast e-mails with the Reception Notice feature. The message is sent to the receiver in specified destination order.

## Canceling a Transmission of an Internet Fax

When fax and Internet Fax destinations are specified simultaneously, you can cancel sending using the same method. However, you cannot cancel the transmission of an Internet Fax document being sent.

## Before the Original Is Scanned

Use this procedure to cancel a transmission before pressing the **[Start]** key.

## Press the [Clear Modes] key.



## 🖉 Note

When documents are placed in the ADF, you can cancel transmission simply by removing them.

# While the Original Is Being Scanned In

Use this procedure to cancel a transmission after pressing the **[Start]** key.

## Press the [Clear/Stop] key.



The machine stops scanning.

## 🖉 Note

- □ You can also cancel scanning by pressing [Stop Scanning].
- □ Scanning may be completed while you are performing the cancel operation.

# After the Original Has Been Scanned In

#### 🖉 Note

You can not cancel the transmission of an Internet Fax being sent.



The list of stored files being transmitted or waiting for transmission appears.

**2** Select the file you want to cancel.

Change/Stop TX File	Select file to stop	transmission				
Scanning Date/Time	Transmission Mode	Destination	Dest.	Or		
150ct. 19:17	Memory TX	abc@defcompany.com	Ttl 1	Ι		
15Oct. 19:09	Memory TX	×yz@defcompany.com	Ttl 1	Ι		
150ct. 19:07	Memory TX	0123456789	Ttl 1			
150ct. 19:07	Memory TX	ABC COMPANY	Ttl 1	Ι		
15Oct. 19:06	Memory TX	LONDON OFFICE	Ttl 1	Ι		
Check/Change Settings Print File Stop Transmission						

## 🖉 Note

□ If the desired file is not shown, press [▲ Prev.] or [▼ Next] to find it.

## Press [Stop Transmission].



## 3

## 🖉 Note

- □ To cancel another file, repeat steps 2 and 3.
- □ To save the scanned file, press [Save].



mission stination	Dect		Om	File No.	Statue	8
c&def.company.com	Titi		l sit	0037	Cancel	FileList
z8defcompany.com	Tti	1	1 sht	s 0036	Standby	Files under TX
23456789	Tti	1	1 sht	s 0034	Standby	Print List
C COMPANY	Tti	1	1 sht	s 0033	Standby	Ĵ
NDON OFFICE	Ttl	1	1 sht	s 0032	Standby	]
Stop Transmiss i	on					Exit

The standby display appears.

## **Receiving Internet Fax Documents**

You can receive e-mail documents by Internet Fax.

There are two methods of receiving email: Auto E-mail Reception and Manual E-mail Reception.

## Limitation

□ E-mail with attachments other than TIFF-F format files cannot be received. Senders receive an Error Mail Notification if their e-mail contains attachments. You can select whether or not the machine sends this message with user parameters. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>* (switch 21, bit 7). However, TIFF-F documents created by the Saving function of Desktop-Binder V2 Professional Lite can be received.

## 🖉 Note

- When Reception Protocol is set to POP3 or IMAP4, you can set the machine to retain incoming e-mail or delete it from the server in "System Settings". See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools–File Transfer", Network Guide.
- □ With user parameters, you can have the machine return the acknowledgment of e-mail to the sender. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>* (switch 21, bit 1).

## **Auto E-mail Reception**

When this function is turned on, this machine periodically checks the email server for incoming e-mail and downloads it as necessary.

E-mail auto-reception should be set in "System Settings". When you select auto-reception, set the reception interval in minutes.

See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools-File Transfer", *Network Guide*.

#### 🖉 Note

If memory runs out, e-mail will not be received at the specified intervals. Reception will resume when sufficient memory becomes available.

## **Manual E-mail Reception**

The following operation allows you to receive e-mail at all times.

#### Preparation

Program the Manual E-mail RX function to the Quick Operation key first. See p.142 "General Settings/Adjustment", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

## **1** Press [Manual E-mail RX].



Access the server to check for email. Receive any saved e-mails.





The standby display appears.

## **Received Images**

Here is an example of an Internet Fax message sent from this machine and received on a computer using Outlook e-mail software.

The received image varies according to e-mail software.



**1.** Mail transmitted without specifying a subject in "E-mail Options".

**2.** Mail transmitted with a subject specified in "E-mail Options".

#### 3. From

The name (e-mail address) of the sender

#### 🖉 Note

The display format of the sender name differs according to that of Stamp Sender Name setting and other functions.

## 4. Date

The date and time of e-mail transmission

#### 5. То

The e-mail address of the recipient

#### 6. Subject

Shows the subject specified in "E-mail Options" at the time of transmission. If no subject is specified, one is automatically assigned in the format shown in 1 above.

From "Own Fax Number" ("Own Name") (Fax Message NO. document number)

## 🖉 Note

□ The format varies according to Stamp Sender Name and other settings. See p.55 "About the E-mail Subject".

#### 7. The message is inserted in all emails.

"xxxx" is the product name.

#### 8. Attachment File

Any message included by the sender is displayed as an attached document.

# 4. Programming

# **Initial Settings and Adjustments**

You can send information to the other party when transmitting or receiving a fax message. This information is shown on the display of the other machine and printed as a report. The following information can be sent.

#### ∰Important

□ You can confirm programmed settings from the user parameter list. We recommend that you print and keep the user parameter list when you program or change settings. See p.163 "Printing the User Parameter list", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*>.

#### Fax Header

The Fax Header is printed as the header of every fax you send. You should include your name in the Fax Header.

You can program Fax Header1 or Fax Header2. When you send originals using Quick Dial, you can select which Fax Header will be printed on the message received by the other party.

## 🖉 Note

- □ You can program up to 32 characters in the Fax Header.
- □ You can use characters, symbols, numbers, and spaces.
- □ You can set whether or not to print a Fax Header using [Fax Header Print] under [Options] . See p.73 "Fax Header Print", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>.

□ In program No. 1 you can program a preference about whether or not the Fax Header is always printed. You will then switch the setting using the Fax Header Print function only when necessary. See p.126 "Registering a priority function using a program", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

## 

p.73 "Fax Header Print", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

p.126 "Registering a priority function using a program", Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>

#### Own Name

The Own Name is sent to the other party when you send or receive a fax using a G3 line. This name should include your name. The Own Name is shown on the display of the other machine and printed in a report.

## Limitation

Own Name works only when the other machine is of the same manufacturer, and has the Own Name function.

## 🖉 Note

- □ You can use characters, symbols, numbers, and spaces.
- □ You can program up to 20 characters as an Own Name.

#### Own Fax Number (facsimile number of sender)

The sender's Own Fax Number is sent to the other party when sending a fax using a G3 line. The received facsimile number is shown on the display of the other machine and printed in a report. This function is available regardless of the manufacturer of the other party's machine.

## 🖉 Note

□ You can program up to 20 characters in Own Fax Number.

#### 🖉 Note

- When the Key Operator Code is programmed and turned on, user have to enter the programmed Key Operator Code (maximum 8 digit) to operate Key Operator Tools.
- This prevents unauthorized people from changing program.

## Programming

Press the [User Tools/Counter] key.



## **2** Press [Facsimile Features].



## 🖉 Note

- If the Key Operator Code is programmed and turned on, enter the programmed Key Operator Code and press the [OK] key.
- **B** Press [Program Fax Information].

		10 001	2008 14:20
			Exit
,			
ail Settings Key	Operator Tools		
Transmission	Select Title	Title 1	
	Change Initial Mode	Standard	
	Adjust Sound Volume		
	Program Fax Information		
	1/2	<b>▲</b> Frev.	▼ Next

4 Program the name and facsimile number.

Programming a Fax Header

Press [First Name] or [Second Name].


2 Enter a fax header, and then press [OK].



# PReference

"Entering Text", General Settings Guide

#### Programming an Own Name

#### Press [Own Name].

U SI	rogram Fax Informati elect item to progran	on 1.
	First Name	* Not programed
	Second Name	* Not programed
1		
15		
n: [	Fax Header	Own Name Own Fax Number

#### 2 Press [Own Name].

	Program Fax Information
	Select item to program.
-	
8	Come Manage
	Ownwalle
ri	
ri	
0	Fax Header Own Name Own Fax Number
3	

**3** Enter an own name, and then press [OK].



# ₽ Reference

"Entering Text", General Settings Guide

Programming an Own Fax Number

#### Press [Own Fax Number].



#### **2** Select line type to program.

	For	G3-1	]	
l	For	G3-1	]	
	FU	G3-1	]	
Fax Header Own Name	Own Fax	x Numher	1	

# 🖉 Note

The display differs depending on the optional units installed on your machine. Senter your own facsimile's number using the number keys, and then press [OK].



#### 🖉 Note

- □ To enter a + sign or a space, press [+] or [Space].
- □ If you make a mistake, press [Clear] or the [Clear / Stop] key, and then enter the fac-simile number again.

# 5 Press [Exit].

# **6** Press the **[User Tools/Counter]** key.

The standby display appears.

# Editing

#### 🖉 Note

The following procedure explains how to edit Own Name, as an example of editing.

# Press the [User Tools/Counter] key.



# **2** Press [Facsimile Features].

	[	Conjor Document Con or		
Cattingo		Features		\$ <sup>3</sup>
second	Ø	Facsimile Features		
	凸	Printer Features		i
			_	

# **B** Press [Program Fax Information].

Feature	Features								
witt settings.									
eception Settings	E-mail Settings	Ke	y Operator Tools	_					
ission Switch	Memory Transmission		Select Title	Ĵ					
rity	Standard		Change Initial Mode	j					
riority	Text		Adjust Sound Volume	Ĵ					
nsity	ON		Program Fax Information	]					
nsity	Level 4		1/2						

#### 4 Press [Fax Header], [Own Name], or [Own Fax Number] for editing.

I	Program Fax Informat	ion		
w	Select item to progra	n.		
.ei	First Name	DEF COMPANY		
	Second Name	SALES DIV.		
n:				
n:	Fax Header	Own Name	Own Fax Number	]

# **5** Press the item you want to edit.

	Program Fax Information
ш	Select item to program.
ei iis	Own Name DEF COMPANY
	Fax Header Own Name Own Fax Number

**6** Press [Backspace] or [Delete All], and then re-enter the name or number.



# Note

□ Press [Clear] or the [Clear/Stop] key if you want to edit Own Fax Number.

# **7** Press [OK].



# 8 Press [Exit].



**9** Press the **[User Tools/Counter]** key. The standby display appears.

# Deleting

# 🖉 Note

- □ The following procedure explains how to delete Own Name, as an example of deleting.
- Press the [User Tools/Counter] key.





s/Count	er/Inquir	У	
Cattingo	0	Copier/Document Server Features	<sub>የ</sub> ሮን
settings	¢₽	Facsimile Features	
	凸	Printer Features	i
	6	Scanner Features	123



# B Press [Program Fax Information].

Feature	s			
wit settings.				
eception Setting:	s E-mail Settings	Ke	y Operator Tools	
ission Switch	Memory Transmission		Select Title	
rity	Standard		Change Initial Mode	
riority	Text		Adjust Sound Volume	
nsity	ON		Program Fax Information	
nsity	Level 4		1/2	

# Press [Fax Header], [Own Name], or [Own Fax Number] to delete.

I	Program Fax	Information				
w	Select item	to program.				
e.	First I	Name DEF	COMPANY			
19 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Second	Name SAL	ES DIV.			
ri						
0	Fax H	eader 📗	Own Name	Own Fax	Number	



# **5** Press the item you want to delete.

I	Program Fax Information
	Select item to program.
-	
e	Our Name DEE COMPANY
ri	
Ľİ.	
n	Fax Header Own Name Own Fax Number
····	·

Press [Backspace] or [Delete All], and then press [OK].



# 🖉 Note

□ Press [Clear] or the 【Clear/Stop】 key if you want to edit Own Fax Number.

# **7** Press [Exit].

					10 0	UT 20	00 14.2
1							
_							
	Own Name	1					
Gamma		ð		 			
	Own Name	Ow	n Fax Number				Exit

Press the [User Tools/Counter] key. The standby display appears.

# Programming Fax Number and E-mail Addresses

You can program fax destinations using Address Book Management in the Key Operator Tools menu under System Settings.

You can also register the programmed fax numbers and e-mail addresses in a Group.

# 🖉 Note

□ When you press the **[Facsimile]** key after changing the contents of the Address Book, such a message appears that indicates that the destination list has been updated. Press **[Exit]**. The standby display appears.

# PReference

"Key Operator Tools", General Settings Guide

"E-mail Destination", General Settings Guide

"Registering Destinations to a Group", General Settings Guide

# 5. Troubleshooting

# Adjusting the Volume

You can change the volume of the following sounds that the machine makes.

#### On Hook Mode

Heard when the **[On Hook Dial]** key is pressed.

#### At Transmission

Heard when the machine sends a message.

#### At Reception

Heard when the machine receives a message.

#### At Dialing

Heard after pressing the **[Start]** key, until the line connects to the destination.

### At Printing

Heard when a received message is printed. See p.95 "Print Completion Beep", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>*.

# 🖉 Note

□ You can adjust the On Hook volume when you press the **[On Hook Dial]** key. See p.56 "On Hook Dial", *Facsimile Reference* <*Advanced Features*>.

# Press the [User Tools/Counter] key.



# **2** Press [Facsimile Features].

s/Counter/Inquiry								
Cattingo	00	Copier/Document Server Features		<b>"</b> В°				
Sectings	¢	Facsimile Features						
	凸	Printer Features		i				
	6	Scanner Features		123				

# B Press [Adjust Sound Volume].

Features										
wit settings.										
eception Setting	s E-mail Settings	Кеу	Operator Tools							
ission Switch	Memory Transmission		Select Title							
rity	Standard		Change Initial Mode							
riority	Text		Adjust Sound Volume							
nsity	ON		Program Fax Information							
nsity	Level 4		1/2							

4 Press [Lower] or [Louder] for each item, and then press [OK].



# 🖉 Note

- □ You can hear the actual volume by pressing [Check].
- □ If you press **[Cancel]**, the volume setting is canceled. The display returns to that of step **§**.

# **5** Press the **[User Tools/Counter]** key.

The standby display appears.

# When the [Facsimile] Key Is Lit in Red

If this key is lit, press the key to enter the facsimile mode. Then, refer to the table below and take the appropriate action.



Problem	Solutions
The paper output tray is full.	Remove the paper from the tray.
A facsimile error has occurred.	The facsimile has a problem. Contact your service representative. See p.74 "Error Messages and Their Meanings". The copier will still function normally.
Out of paper	Add more paper.
	"Loading Paper", General Settings Guide
A network error has occurred.	• Check the displayed message. See p.74 "Error Messages and Their Meanings".
	• Check the machine is correctly connected to the network, and the machine is correctly set. See <i>Network Guide</i> .
	Consult your network administrator.
	• When the key is still lit in red even if you take the measures above, please contact your service representative.

# When Toner Runs Out

When the machine has run out of toner, the symbol appears on the display. Note that even if there is no toner left, you can still send fax messages.

### ∰Important

□ The number of communications, that have been executed after the toner has run out and that automatically-output Journal has not list, exceeds 200 (1000 with the optional expansion memory installed), communication will not be possible.

### Limitation

The Memory Storage Report, Polling Reserve Report, and Confidential File Report are not printed.

# **1** Make sure that the machine is in facsimile mode.



# 🖉 Note

□ If the standby screen is not displayed, press the **[Facsimile]** key.

# **2** Press [Exit], and then perform transmission operation.

The error message disappears.

# PReference

- p.20 "Memory Transmission"
- p.27 "Immediate Transmission"

# **Error Messages and Their Meanings**

If there is an error, one of the following messages may appear on the display. If other message appears, follow the message.

Message	Causes and solutions						
Put original back, check it and press [Start].	Original jammed during Memory Transmis- sion. Place originals that have not been scanned again.						
Error occurred, and transmis- sion was canceled.	A document jam occurred during Immediate Transmission. Press <b>[OK]</b> , and then resend the pages that have not been sent.						
	An error occurred during Immediate Trans- mission. Press <b>[OK]</b> , and then resend the origi- nal.						
	Note						
	There may be a problem with the machine or the telephone line (for example noise or cross talk). If the error reoccurs frequently, contact your service representative.						
Cannot detect original size. Place original again, then press [Start].	The machine failed to detect the size of the original. Place originals again, and then press the <b>[Start]</b> key.						
ᡭ Call Service	There is a problem with the fax. Record the						
Functional problems with fac- simile. Please call service.	code number shown in the display and contact your service representative. The copy function will still work normally.						
Memory is full. Cannot scan more. Transmitting only scanned pages.	If you press <b>[OK]</b> , the machine returns to stand- by mode and starts transmitting the pages that have been stored.						
Following output tray is full. Remove paper.	The paper output tray is full. Remove paper from the tray indicated in the display.						
Cannot scan to send fax message as scanner is in use for other function.	The Copy or Document Server function is in use. To cancel the job in process, do the follow- ing, and then try faxing again.						
	Press [Exit], and then press the [Copy] or [Doc- ument Server] key. Next press the [Clear/Stop] key. When the message "[Stop] key was pressed. Stop copying?" or "[Stop] key was pressed. Stop storing?" appears, press [Stop].						

Message	Causes and solutions							
Updating the destination list. Please wait. Selected destina- tions or function settings have been cleared. Please reselect after the update finishes.	Wait with the main power switch on. The ma- chine will enter standby mode after it exits from RDS mode.							
Check whether there are any network problems. [14-01]	<ul> <li>Cannot find the DNS server or SMTP server.</li> <li>Check the DNS server's IP address is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the DNS server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the host name or IP address of the SMTP server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the SMTP server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the SMTP server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the LAN cable is correctly connected to the fax machine. See "Connecting the Network Cable to the Network", Network</li> </ul>							
	<ul><li><i>Guide</i>.</li><li>Consult your network administrator.</li></ul>							
Check whether there are any network problems. [14-09]	<ul> <li>E-mail transmission was refused by SMTP authentication or POP before SMTP authentication.</li> <li>Check the user name and password for SMTP authentication or POP before SMTP authentication are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Check the user name and password of the e-mail account are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Check the user name and password of the e-mail account are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>							
Check whether there are any network problems. [14-33]	<ul> <li>No machine's address is programmed.</li> <li>Check the fax machine's e-mail address is correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>							

Message	Causes and solutions
Check whether there are any network problems. [15-01]	<ul> <li>No POP3/IMAP4 server's address is programmed.</li> <li>Check the host name or IP address of the POP3/IMAP4 server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>
Check whether there are any network problems. [15-02]	<ul> <li>Cannot log on to the POP3/IMAP4 server.</li> <li>Check the user name and password of the e-mail account are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>
Check whether there are any network problems. [15-03]	<ul> <li>No machine's e-mail address is programmed.</li> <li>Check the fax machine's e-mail address is correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> </ul>
Check whether there are any network problems. [15-11]	<ul> <li>Cannot find the DNS server or POP3/IMAP4 server.</li> <li>Check the DNS server's IP address is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the DNS server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the host name or IP address of the POP3/IMAP4 server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the POP3/IMAP4 server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the POP3/IMAP4 server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Check the POP3/IMAP4 server is correctly programmed using the Web browser. See the Web browser's Help.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>

Message	Causes and solutions
Check whether there are any network problems. [15-12]	<ul> <li>Cannot log on to the POP3/IMAP4 server.</li> <li>Check the user name and password of the e-mail account are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Check the user name and password for POP before SMTP authentication are correctly programmed from File Transfer under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer Under System Settings. See "Settings You Can Change with User Tools – File Transfer", <i>Network Guide</i>.</li> <li>Consult your network administrator.</li> </ul>

# Out of paper display message

If the paper tray runs out of paper, "No paper. Load it, then press [Exit]." appears on the display, asking you to add more paper.

### 🖉 Note

- □ If there is paper left in the other paper trays, you can receive messages as usual, even if the message appears on the display.
- □ You can turn this function on or off with the User Parameters. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features*> (switch 05, bit 7).

• •	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•

# Vetwork error display message

If the "Check whether there are any network problems" message appears, the machine is not correctly connected to the network or the settings of the machine is not correct. If you do not need to connect the machine to the network, you can select so that the message disappear and the key goes out with User Parameters. See p.158 "User Parameters", *Facsimile Reference <Advanced Features>* (switch 21, bit 6).

### 🖉 Note

When you restart connecting the machine to the network, make sure to set "Display" with User Parameters. Otherwise, you cannot check the status of the network connection.

# **Solving Problems**

This table lists some common problems and their solutions.

Problem	Causes and solutions	Reference						
Image background appears dirty when received at the other end. Images from the back page appears.	Adjust scan density.	p.32 "Image Density (Con- trast)"						
Printed or sent image contains spots.	The ADF or exposure glass is dirty. Clean them. Make sure that ink or correc- tion fluid is dry before placing originals.	"Maintaining Your Machine", General Settings Guide						
Received image is too light.	Request the sender to increase image density.							
	When using moist, rough, or processed paper, the printed image may be partly invisible. Only use recommended pa- per.	"Copy Paper", General Set- tings Guide						
	When dia appears on the display, toner is beginning to run out. Replace the toner cartridge soon.	"🕍 Adding Toner", General Settings Guide						
The machine failed to print re- ceived fax messages.	If this happened when the re- ceive file indicator was lit, a problem such as run out of pa- per or toner might disable printing.	p.84 "Substitute Reception", Facsimile Reference <advanced Features&gt;</advanced 						
	[Store] has been selected for [Reception File Setting]. Print the fax messages using a Web browser or the print Stored RX File function.	p.120 "Printing fax informa- tion using a Web browser", Facsimile Reference <advanced Features&gt; and p.34 "Printing Received and Stored Docu- ments", Facsimile Reference <advanced features=""></advanced></advanced 						
	When 🛓 is lit, load paper into the tray.	"Loading Paper", General Set- tings Guide						
Message appears blank at the other end.	The original was placed up- side down. Place it properly.	p.13 "Placing Originals"						
Both transmission and receiv- ing are impossible.	Make sure that the modular cord is correctly connected.	p.194 "Connecting the Ma- chine to a Telephone Line and Telephone", <i>Facsimile Refer-</i> <i>ence <advanced features=""></advanced></i>						
	The terminal adaptor setting is incorrect. Check the setting.							

Problem	Causes and solutions	Reference						
Transmission is possible, though receiving is impossi- ble.	The optional terminal adaptor setting is incorrect. Check the setting.							
Receiving is possible, though transmission is impossible.	The optional terminal adaptor setting is incorrect. Check the setting.							
When using On Hook Dial or Manual Dial, "Receiving" appears and transmission is not allowed.	If the machine fails to detect the size of the original when the <b>[Start]</b> key is pressed, it performs a receiving opera- tion. Press <b>[Scan Area]</b> , select the scan area, and then resend the document.	p.16 "Setting a Scan Area"						
All fax messages stored in memory have been lost. Those messages include ones stored through Memory Transmis- sion/Reception, Confidential Reception, Substitute Recep- tion, or Auto Document.	When about one hour passes after power of the machine is turned off, all fax messages stored in memory are lost. If any messages have been lost for this reason, a Power Fail- ure Report is automatically printed when the machine is turned on. If fax messages stored for Memory Transmis- sion have been lost, check the destinations and resend the messages. If fax messages re- ceived through Memory, Con- fidential or Substitute Reception have been lost, ask the senders to resend the mes- sages. If Auto Documents have been lost, reprogram them.	p.145 "E-mail Settings", Fac- simile Reference <advanced fea-<br="">tures&gt;</advanced>						
Transmission failed due to "Exceeded max. E-mail size" error.	If the e-mail size specified on the machine exceeds, an Inter- net Fax document cannot be sent. Set Max. E-mail Size to OFF, or specify the maximum e-mail size to a larger volume. Then, resend the document.	p.145 "E-mail Settings", Fac- simile Reference <advanced fea-<br="">tures&gt;</advanced>						
When a correct password is entered, you cannot print doc- uments that appear in the con- fidential box or bulletin board box, or transmit / print out stored documents.	Documents are locked by a se- curity function when incorrect passwords are entered a cer- tain number of times. Contact the administrator.	"Extended Security Func- tion", General Settings Guide						

# When Things Don't Go as Expected

I Want	Operation	Reference
to cancel a Memory Transmis- sion.	If the original is being scanned, press <b>[Stop Scanning]</b> or the <b>[Clear/Stop]</b> key.	p.24 "Canceling a Memory Transmission"
	If the original is being sent or if it is in standby, press [Change/Stop TX File] or the [Clear/Stop] key.	p.24 "Canceling a Memory Transmission" p.19 "Canceling a Transmis- sion", Facsimile Reference <ad- vanced Features&gt;</ad- 
to cancel an Immediate Trans- mission.	Press [Stop Transmission] or the [Clear/Stop] key.	p.29 "Canceling an Immediate Transmission"

# INDEX

#### A

Adjusting The Volume, 71 At Dialing, 71 At Printing, 71 At Reception, 71 At Transmission, 71 On Hook Mode, 71 Authorized Reception, 49 Auto E-mail Reception, 59 Auto Reception, 45

#### В

Batch Transmission, 48 BCC transmission, 50 Broadcasting, 20 Broadcasting Sequence, 23

#### С

Chain Dial, 48 Check Modes key, 3 Clear Modes key, 3 Clear/Stop key, 5 Communicating indicator, 4 Confidential file indicator, 4 Confidential Reception, 49 Confidential Transmission, 48 Control Panel, 3 CSI->Own Fax Number, 64

#### D

Destination list, 35, 37 Detail, 30 Display, 5 Display Panel, 3

#### Е

ECM, 48 Entering a fax number, 35 Entering an e-mail address, 36 Enter Text, in e-mail, 50 Error Messages, 74

#### F

Facsimile key, 4, 72 Fax Header, 63 Deleting, 67 Editing, 66 Programming, 64 Faxing, 11 Functions Not Supported by e-mail Reception, 49 Functions Not Supported by e-mail Transmission, 48

#### G

Getting Started, 3 Groups Specifying a Destination, 35

#### I

ID Transmission, 48 Image Density (Contrast), 30, 32 Immediate Transmission, 11, 12, 27, 48 *Canceling*, 29 Internet Fax, 47 Internet Fax Precautions, 48 Internet Fax, Sending, 50

#### J

JBIG Transmission, 48

#### Κ

# key (Enter key), 5

#### М

Main Power indicator, 3 Manual Dial, 48 Manual Reception, 45 Memory File Transfer, 48 Memory Lock Reception, 49 Memory Transmission, 11, 12, 20 *Canceling*, 24

#### Ν

Number keys, 5

#### 0

On Hook Dial, 48 On Hook Dial key, 4 On indicator, 4 Operation switch, 4 Original Type, 30, 31 Own Fax Number, 64 *Deleting*, 67 *Editing*, 66 *Programming*, 64 Own Name, 63 *Deleting*, 66 *Programming*, 64

#### Ρ

Pause, 35 Pause/Redial key, 4 Photo, 31 Placing Originals, 13 Polling Reception, 49 Polling Transmission, 48 Program key, 3 Programming, 63

#### Q

Quick Dial Specifying a Destination, 35

#### R

Received Images, 60 Receive File indicator, 4 Receiving Internet Fax, 59 Reception, 45 *Auto Reception*, 45 *Manual Reception*, 45 Reception Confirmation, 56 Reception File Print Quantity, 49 Reception Notice, 50, 56 Resolution, 30 RTI->Own Name, 63 Scan Settings, 30 Stamp Sender Name, 55 Standard, 30 Start key, 5 Start Manual RX key, 4 SUB Code Reception, 49 Subject, in e-mail, 50, 55 Super Fine, 30

#### Т

Text, 31 Text / Photo, 31 Tone, 36 Tone key, 4 Toner, 73 Transmission by SUB Code, 48 Transmission of an Internet Fax *Canceling*, 57 TTI->Fax Header, 63

#### U

User Tools/Counter key, 3

FAX Option Type 2027 Operating Instructions Facsimile Reference <Basic Features>

